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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

__________________________________x

VIACOM INTERNATIONAL, INC., COMEDY
PARTNERS, COUNTRY MUSIC
TELEVISION, INC., PARAMOUNT
PICTURES CORPORATION, and BLACK
ENTERTAINMENT TELEVISION, LLC,

Plaintiffs,

vs. NO. 07-CV-2103

YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC,
and GOOGLE, INC.,

Defendants.
__________________________________x

THE FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION PREMIER
LEAGUE LIMITED, BOURNE CO., et al.,
On behalf of themselves and all
Others similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,

vs.
NO. 07-CV-3582

YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC, and
GOOGLE, INC.,

Defendants.
__________________________________x

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF DAMON BURRELL
NEW YORK, NEW YORK

TUESDAY, APRIL 14, 2009
JOB NO.: 16730
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3 FOR THE PLAINTIFFS VIACOM INTERNATIONAL,

4 INC.:
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8 Washington, D.C. 20001
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1 Burrell

211:03:45 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is

311:03:46 11:03 a.m., and we're back on the

411:03:50 record.

511:03:52 A. So I just wanted to clarify, when

611:03:54 you had asked me earlier who I had met with

711:03:59 for prep sessions, it is both Scott and also

811:04:06 Stanley Pierre-Louis, for both sessions.

911:04:08 Q. Okay. Do you know if the

1011:04:20 communications department at MTV ever engages

1111:04:23 some of these third-party viral marketing

1211:04:27 companies that we've been discussing today?

1311:04:30 A. Yes.

1411:04:31 Q. And do you know who in the

1511:04:35 communications department at MTV would be

1611:04:37 responsible for dealing with and managing the

1711:04:42 third-party marketing agency relationships?

1811:04:49 A. I know of multiple people.

1911:04:52 Q. Can you name them for me, please?

2011:04:53 A. Ariana Urbont. David French, he's

2111:05:06 no longer there. He left recently. Emily

2211:05:22 Yeomans.

2311:05:34 Just give me a second, I have her

2411:05:38 pictured. Marnie Black.

2511:05:44 Q. And can you tell me the
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1 Burrell

211:05:50 circumstances in which it would be the

311:05:52 communications department that is engaging

411:05:54 the third-party marketing agencies, instead

511:05:59 of the marketing department?

611:06:04 A. For press initiatives.

711:06:05 Q. So the communications department

811:06:12 would be used for press initiatives and, in

911:06:17 that circumstance, would be hiring

1011:06:19 third-party agencies; is that right?

1111:06:20 A. Correct.

1211:06:21 Q. And does the communications

1311:06:27 department at MTV ever use YouTube as part of

1411:06:30 their press initiatives?

1511:06:39 A. I wouldn't know.

1611:06:40 Q. If I wanted to find out all of the

1711:07:11 clips that MTV has authorized to be on

1811:07:15 YouTube, for promotional purposes, how would

1911:07:18 I go about finding that out?

2011:07:20 MR. WILKENS: Objection, lack of

2111:07:22 foundation.

2211:07:22 A. Repeat your question again?

2311:07:24 Q. Sure. If I wanted to find out all

2411:07:26 the clips that MTV has authorized to be on

2511:07:28 YouTube, for promotional purposes, how would
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211:07:29 I go about finding that out?

311:07:38 A. Best way would be to ask all of the

411:07:50 individual agencies that we've used.

511:07:57 People's computers.

611:08:06 Q. Does MTV ever use viral marketing

711:08:10 to promote DVD sales?

811:08:23 A. I can't -- I can't remember.

911:08:31 I don't oversee DVD promotions.

1011:08:36 Q. Do you oversee on-air promotions?

1111:08:39 A. No, I do not.

1211:08:40 Q. I'm sorry. We will just back up.

1311:08:43 What do you oversee?

1411:08:45 A. I'm responsible for the promotion

1511:08:47 of our television shows and our events to

1611:08:52 consumers off of MTV.

1711:08:55 Q. Do you know who heads up viral

1811:09:07 marketing efforts at Comedy Central?

1911:09:15 A. I don't.

2011:09:16 Q. Do you know anybody at Comedy

2111:09:20 Central who works with viral marketing

2211:09:21 agencies?

2311:09:28 A. I can't, I can't remember.

2411:09:30 Q. What about Nickelodeon?

2511:09:44 A. What's your question?
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211:09:45 Q. Do you know who heads up viral

311:09:48 marketing efforts at Nickelodeon?

411:09:51 A. No, I don't.

511:09:51 Q. Do you know anyone who works in

611:09:57 viral marketing -- who works at viral

711:10:02 marketing efforts at Nickelodeon?

811:10:03 A. No, I don't.

911:10:09 Q. What about at VH1, do you know

1011:10:16 anyone who works on viral marketing efforts

1111:10:19 at VH1?

1211:10:21 A. Yes, I do.

1311:10:29 Q. And who is that?

1411:10:30 A. Debra Kadetsky.

1511:10:42 Q. Do you know anyone else at VH1 who

1611:10:45 works on viral marketing efforts?

1711:10:47 A. I do not.

1811:10:52 Q. Are you familiar with a company

1911:11:14 called BayTSP?

2011:11:16 A. Not that I can recall.

2111:11:17 Q. Have you ever been asked to review

2211:11:24 video clips, before they are taken down from

2311:11:27 the YouTube service, to determine whether

2411:11:28 they were uploaded for marketing purposes?

2511:11:35 A. Nothing that I can remember.
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213:16:18 A. Out of context, I don't know what

313:16:23 she intended to mean when she said that.

413:16:25 Q. Do you have any understanding as to

513:16:32 why she would have made a statement that you

613:16:34 oversee internal viral marketing efforts at

713:16:36 MTV?

813:16:37 MR. WILKENS: Same objection.

913:16:39 A. Again, out of -- out of context, I

1013:16:48 don't know what she intended to mean when she

1113:16:50 made that statement.

1213:16:51 Q. The context is she said that you

1313:16:54 oversaw those initiatives.

1413:16:55 MR. WILKENS: Objection, for the

1513:16:56 same reasons I said earlier. If you are

1613:16:58 not going to show him the transcript, I

1713:17:01 object.

1813:17:02 Q. And my question is, is she

1913:17:04 mistaken?

2013:17:05 MR. WILKENS: Same objection.

2113:17:06 A. What's your question now?

2213:17:12 Q. Is -- was Ms. Exarhos mistaken when

2313:17:17 she testified, under oath, that you oversaw

2413:17:20 initiatives related to MTV's internal viral

2513:17:24 marketing?



97aca7dc-2c44-40e4-9a23-7371076034a3

805 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

Page 86

1 Burrell

213:17:24 MR. WILKENS: Objection to the

313:17:25 characterization of Ms. Exarhos'

413:17:27 testimony.

513:17:29 A. I'm not sure what she intended to

613:17:31 mean when she made that statement.

713:17:35 My responsibilities at MTV are to

813:17:39 market and promote our television shows and

913:17:42 events, utilizing multiple marketing tactics.

1013:17:47 Viral marketing is included as one of those.

1113:17:50 Q. Is it possible that all the MTV

1213:17:54 clips that Viacom is suing YouTube over were

1313:17:57 uploaded by MTV employees or its agents?

1413:18:00 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

1513:18:03 A. Your question is, is it possible?

1613:18:05 Q. Yes. Is it possible that all of

1713:18:07 the MTV clips that Viacom is suing YouTube

1813:18:09 over were uploaded by MTV employees or its

1913:18:14 agents?

2013:18:14 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

2113:18:14 A. I wouldn't know.

2213:18:15 Q. I have a list of television

2313:18:34 programs that appeared on MTV or MTV2, and

2413:18:37 I'm going to ask you whether or not, for each

2513:18:39 program, MTV's agents or employees ever
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213:18:44 uploaded clips from those shows to YouTube.

313:18:47 A. Okay.

413:18:47 Q. And you can just answer whether you

513:18:49 know or not, yes, no, or if you don't know,

613:18:51 you don't know.

713:18:52 The show 52 Bands/52 Weeks, do you

813:18:58 know if MTV agents or employees ever uploaded

913:19:02 clips from that show to YouTube?

1013:19:03 A. I don't know.

1113:19:04 Q. What about True Life?

1213:19:06 A. I wouldn't be able to remember.

1313:19:09 Q. You don't remember, as you sit here

1413:19:15 today?

1513:19:15 A. I don't remember.

1613:19:16 Q. That's Amore?

1713:19:19 A. That's Amore? I definitely don't

1813:19:24 remember.

1913:19:24 Q. America's Best Dance Crew?

2013:19:28 A. And the question is?

2113:19:32 Q. Have, have MTV employees or its

2213:19:36 agents ever uploaded clips from these

2313:19:40 programs to YouTube?

2413:19:40 A. I don't -- I don't know.

2513:19:43 Q. The Paper?
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213:19:48 A. I don't know.

313:19:50 Q. Rock The Cradle?

413:19:56 A. I can't remember.

513:19:58 Q. Yo! MTV Raps?

613:20:02 A. Do not know.

713:20:03 Q. Hottest MCs In The Game?

813:20:13 A. Definitely do not know.

913:20:14 Q. From G's to Gents?

1013:20:20 A. I can't remember.

1113:20:24 Q. Legally Blonde The Musical?

1213:20:28 A. I can't remember.

1313:20:36 Q. American Mall?

1413:20:38 A. Do not know.

1513:20:44 Q. Buzzin'?

1613:20:52 A. Sorry, I can't remember.

1713:20:53 Q. How about Busted?

1813:20:54 A. Do not know.

1913:20:55 Q. Video Music Awards?

2013:20:57 A. Can't remember.

2113:21:28 Q. Paris BFF?

2213:21:33 A. Cannot remember.

2313:21:36 Q. Man and Wife?

2413:21:40 A. Can't remember.

2513:21:48 Q. I'm From Rolling Stone?
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213:21:51 A. Do not know.

313:21:52 Q. Wonder Showzen?

413:21:54 A. Do not know.

513:21:56 Q. Dancelife?

613:21:58 A. Do not know.

713:21:59 Q. Robin Big?

813:22:06 A. Can't remember.

913:22:08 Q. Bam's Unholy Union?

1013:22:12 A. Do not know.

1113:22:13 Q. A Shot At Love?

1213:22:15 A. I can't remember on that one

1313:22:24 either.

1413:22:24 Q. Call To Greatness?

1513:22:25 A. Do not know.

1613:22:26 Q. Brooke Knows Best?

1713:22:29 A. Do not know.

1813:22:32 I don't think that's an MTV show.

1913:22:34 Q. There's a program, a reality show

2013:22:36 with Brooke Hogan.

2113:22:38 Is that not Brooke Knows Best?

2213:22:41 A. That's on VH1.

2313:22:44 I only work on MTV.

2413:22:45 Q. Okay. FN MTV?

2513:22:48 A. Can't remember.
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213:22:51 Q. Where My Dog's At?

313:22:55 A. Do not know.

413:22:57 Q. Two-A-Days?

513:22:59 A. Can't remember.

613:23:02 Q. Yo! Mama?

713:23:19 A. I can't remember.

813:23:20 Q. Pimp My Ride?

913:23:22 A. Do not know.

1013:23:23 Q. Engaged & Underage?

1113:23:25 A. Do not know.

1213:23:26 Q. Beavis And Butthead?

1313:23:31 A. Can't remember.

1413:23:36 Q. Wild 'N Out?

1513:23:38 A. Cannot remember.

1613:23:51 Q. Human Giant?

1713:23:54 A. Can't remember.

1813:24:04 Q. Adventures in Hollywood?

1913:24:08 A. Do not know.

2013:24:10 Q. Exposed?

2113:24:12 A. Don't know.

2213:24:18 Q. Final Fu?

2313:24:24 A. Do not know.

2413:24:25 Q. Homewrecker?

2513:24:28 A. Do not know.
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213:24:29 Q. Cribs?

313:24:30 A. Do not know.

413:24:33 Q. Maui Fever?

513:24:37 A. Can't remember on that one.

613:24:42 Q. Daria?

713:24:50 A. The name of the show is Daria?

813:24:52 Q. D-A-R-I-A?

913:24:55 A. Do not know.

1013:24:56 Q. Wild Boys?

1113:24:58 A. Definitely do not know.

1213:25:00 Q. Run's House?

1313:25:06 A. Can't remember specifically.

1413:25:08 Q. Do you remember generally?

1513:25:11 A. I do not.

1613:25:12 Q. Jackass?

1713:25:16 A. I can't remember.

1813:25:18 Q. Andy Milonakis Show?

1913:25:25 A. Do not know.

2013:25:26 Q. Cheyenne?

2113:25:28 A. I can't remember.

2213:25:34 Q. Punk'd?

2313:25:37 A. I wouldn't know. I don't know.

2413:25:41 Q. Kenny versus Spenny?

2513:25:45 A. I do not know.
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213:25:46 Q. Short Circuits?

313:25:51 A. Just -- the question is --

413:26:11 Q. Whether MTV's employees or agents

513:26:14 ever uploaded clips from these shows to

613:26:17 YouTube for marketing purposes.

713:26:22 A. I do not know.

813:26:23 Q. The Hills?

913:26:24 A. I can't remember.

1013:26:28 Q. Celebrity Deathmatch?

1113:26:33 A. I do not know.

1213:26:34 Q. The Duel?

1313:26:40 A. I can't remember.

1413:26:41 Q. Laguna Beach?

1513:26:46 A. Definitely cannot remember.

1613:26:50 Q. Twentyfourseven?

1713:26:51 A. Definitely cannot remember.

1813:26:52 Q. Real World?

1913:26:53 A. Which one?

2013:26:54 Q. Any of them.

2113:26:56 A. I can't, I can't remember here.

2213:27:11 Q. Celebrity Rap Superstar?

2313:27:16 A. Do not remember.

2413:27:17 Q. My Super Sweet 16?

2513:27:21 A. I wouldn't know.
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213:27:24 Q. Making The Band?

313:27:25 A. I cannot remember.

413:27:31 Q. Little Talent Show?

513:27:32 A. I do not know.

613:27:33 Q. Life of Ryan?

713:27:34 A. Can't remember.

813:27:45 MR. VOLKMER: Okay. Let's go off

913:27:48 the record for one second.

1013:27:49 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is

1113:27:52 1:27 p.m., and we're going off the

1213:27:54 record.

1313:28:06 (A brief recess was taken.)

1413:30:36 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is

1513:30:53 1:30 p.m., we are back on the record.

1613:30:55 Q. Mr. Burrell, we just went over a

1713:30:57 list of shows, and I asked whether MTV's

1813:31:02 employees or agents had ever uploaded clips

1913:31:05 from those shows to YouTube for marketing

2013:31:06 purposes. And you were unable to answer for

2113:31:10 any of those shows whether that practice had

2213:31:12 occurred, and I'm curious if there is anyone

2313:31:15 else at MTV who might be in a better position

2413:31:16 to answer those questions.

2513:31:20 A. I don't know if there is anyone
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213:31:27 that would know.

313:31:27 Q. You're the vice president of

413:31:30 consumer marketing at MTV, correct?

513:31:33 A. Correct.

613:31:33 Q. And is there anyone who has a job

713:31:36 title that you can think of that might be in

813:31:39 a better position to answer those questions

913:31:41 than you?

1013:31:46 A. I don't think there is any one

1113:31:47 person, no.

1213:31:48 Q. Do you think there are groups of

1313:31:50 people who might be in a better position to

1413:31:52 answer those questions than you?

1513:31:54 A. Yes.

1613:31:54 Q. And who are those groups?

1713:32:02 A. The agencies that we worked with to

1813:32:05 promote our shows would have a record of what

1913:32:08 we did to promote and the specific tactics we

2013:32:12 used to promote our shows.

2113:32:14 Q. When the agencies upload materials

2213:32:24 to UGC websites, they do so with MTV's

2313:32:31 authorization, correct?

2413:32:38 A. We authorize agencies to utilize

2513:32:41 multiple tactics to promote our shows.
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213:32:46 Q. And one of those tactics includes

313:32:53 uploading materials to internet websites; is

413:32:55 that right?

513:32:55 A. That's correct.

613:32:56 Q. And when that occurs, those uploads

713:33:01 are authorized by MTV, right?

813:33:05 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

913:33:10 A. We authorize our agencies to

1013:33:13 utilize multiple tactics to promote our

1113:33:15 television shows. Viral marketing is one of

1213:33:17 those tactics.

1313:33:18 Q. When viral marketing is employed by

1413:33:24 the agency, and the agency uploads materials

1513:33:27 to websites, those uploads are authorized,

1613:33:30 correct?

1713:33:34 A. The agencies that we employ are

1813:33:36 authorized to utilize multiple viral

1913:33:38 marketing tactics to promote our shows.

2013:33:45 Uploading is one of them.

2113:33:50 MR. VOLKMER: I would like to mark

2213:33:51 Exhibit 10.

2313:33:53 (Exhibit Burrell-10, E-mail chain,

2413:33:53 Bates Nos. VIA00830869 through

2513:33:53 VIA00830873, marked for identification,
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213:38:59 A. It could be multiple things.

313:39:02 Q. What could it be?

413:39:06 A. If I were to assume, it could -- it

513:39:13 could be content from Lily Allen, it could be

613:39:21 content from MTV's Discover & Download. It

713:39:25 could be content from a tour. It could

813:39:28 potentially be content from Cornerstone.

913:39:40 Q. But you're asking whether it's

1013:39:41 linking to "our content," correct?

1113:39:49 A. What I wrote in the e-mail was, "Is

1213:39:52 it linking to our content on YouTube?"

1313:39:58 That's what I wrote.

1413:39:58 Q. Right. And what were you referring

1513:40:00 to, when you said "our content"?

1613:40:02 Are you talking about MTV

1713:40:03 television programs?

1813:40:05 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

1913:40:05 A. Unfortunately, I can't remember

2013:40:12 what, what I meant at the time when I wrote

2113:40:13 this.

2213:40:14 Q. And then you say, "If not, I don't

2313:40:16 see any issues."

2413:40:20 Why would there be issues linking

2513:40:22 to MTV content on YouTube in an MTV press
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213:40:25 release?

313:40:35 A. I can't remember what my thought

413:40:39 process was at the time when I wrote this and

513:40:40 what those issues, potential issues could

613:40:43 have, could have been; what I was thinking.

713:40:55 Q. That content that was being linked

813:41:08 to, in this press release on YouTube, that

913:41:14 was authorized to be on YouTube, right?

1013:41:16 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

1113:41:17 A. I didn't work on this, so I

1213:41:24 wouldn't know.

1313:41:25 Q. You don't know whether the

1413:41:29 content -- the YouTube links, I should say,

1513:41:33 that were referenced in this press release,

1613:41:36 whether those clips were authorized to be on

1713:41:38 the YouTube service?

1813:41:41 A. I didn't work on this campaign, so

1913:41:43 I don't know what was done to promote the

2013:41:45 show.

2113:41:45 Q. If you could turn to the second

2213:41:53 page of this exhibit, it says "YouTube

2313:41:57 links," and it has a number of YouTube clips

2413:42:01 that are referenced in this press release.

2513:42:04 You don't know whether those clips
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1 Burrell

213:42:07 were authorized to be on YouTube?

313:42:12 A. Again, I didn't work on this

413:42:13 campaign, so I don't know what was done to

513:42:20 promote this campaign.

613:42:22 Q. Setting aside your relationship to

713:42:28 this particular campaign, as you sit here

813:42:31 today, do you know, one way or the other,

913:42:33 whether these clips that are referenced in

1013:42:34 the second page of this exhibit are

1113:42:36 authorized to be up on YouTube?

1213:42:38 A. I don't know.

1313:43:07 MR. VOLKMER: I would like to mark

1413:43:08 Exhibit 11.

1513:43:22 (Exhibit Burrell-11, E-mail chain,

1613:43:22 Bates Nos. VIA00830895 and VIA00830896,

1713:44:15 marked for identification, this date.)

1813:44:15 Q. This is an e-mail thread that was

1913:44:17 forwarded to Mr. Burrell and Mr. Armenia and

2013:44:20 Ms. Preston from Tina Exarhos on December 29,

2113:44:27 2006. And if you could turn to the fourth

2213:44:30 e-mail from the top, which is at 11:07 a.m.

2313:44:39 Ms. Exarhos asks, "Does this also mean that

2413:44:42 we need to pull down content that we uploaded

2513:44:44 to YouTube for marketing purposes?"
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1 Burrell

213:44:46 Do you see that?

313:44:47 A. Yes, I see, I see that in the

413:44:49 e-mail.

513:44:49 Q. And at that time there was content

613:44:51 on YouTube that MTV had uploaded for

713:44:55 marketing purposes, correct?

813:44:58 A. I don't remember.

913:44:59 Q. But that's what Ms. Exarhos is

1013:45:06 reporting?

1113:45:12 A. I don't know what her intent was

1213:45:14 when she -- when she wrote this, when she

1313:45:18 wrote this e-mail.

1413:45:19 Q. Setting aside her intent, she's

1513:45:24 reporting that there is content that's been

1613:45:26 uploaded to YouTube for marketing purposes;

1713:45:27 is that how you read this e-mail?

1813:45:29 A. I don't know what she intended to

1913:45:49 mean, when she wrote this.

2013:45:50 Q. She asked, "Does this also mean we

2113:46:01 need to pull down content that we've uploaded

2213:46:03 to YouTube for marketing purposes?"

2313:46:06 She's reporting that there's

2413:46:08 content on the YouTube service that MTV has

2513:46:12 uploaded for marketing purposes; isn't that
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

VIACOM INTERNATIONAL INC., COMEDY )
PARTNERS, COUNTRY MUSIC )
TELEVISION, INC., PARAMOUNT )
PICTURES CORPORATION, and BLACK )
ENTERTAINMENT TELEVISION LLC, )

)
Plaintiffs, )

vs. ) Case No. 07CV2203
YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC, )
and GOOGLE, INC., )

)
Defendants. )

___________________________________)
THE FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION PREMIER )
LEAGUE LIMITED, BOURNE CO., et al.,)
on behalf of themselves and all )
others similarly situated, )

)
Plaintiffs, )

vs. ) Case No. 07CV3582
YOUTUBE, INC., YOUTUBE, LLC, and )
GOOGLE, INC., )

)
Defendants. )

__________________________________)

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF TINA EXARHOS

NEW YORK, NEW YORK

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2009

REPORTED BY:
ERICA RUGGIERI, CSR, RPR
JOB NO: 16507
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1

2

3

4 February 23, 2009

5 9:36 a.m.

6

7 VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF TINA

8 EXARHOS, held at the offices of Wilson

9 Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, 1301 Avenue of,

10 New York, New York, pursuant to notice,

11 before before Erica L. Ruggieri,

12 Registered Professional Reporter and

13 Notary Public of the State of New York.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1

2 A P P E A R A N C E S

3 FOR THE PLAINTIFFS:

4 JENNER & BLOCK, LLP

5 BY: SCOTT B. WILKENS, ESQ

6 1099 New York Avenue, NW

7 Washington, D.C. 20001

8 (202) 639-6000

9 Swilkens@jenner.com

10

11 FOR THE DEFENDANTS

12 WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI, PC

13 BY: BART E. VOLKMER, ESQ.

14 650 Page Mill Road

15 Palo Alto, CA 94304

16 (650) 493-9300

17 Bvolkmer@wsgr.com

18 - and -

19 MAYER BROWN, LLP

20 BY: JASON KIRSCHNER, ESQ.

21 1675 Broadway

22 New York, New York 10019

23 (212) 506-2500

24 Jkirschner@mayerbrown.com

25
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2 A P P E A R A N C E S: (Cont'd)

3

4 ALSO PRESENT:

5 MICHELENA HALLIE, MTV Networks

6 CARLOS KING, Videographer

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 * * *

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 different.

3 I'd be interpreting what she's

4 referring to here. I don't think it's

504:27:33 necessarily referring to that, how the

6 other one was posted. Reading it back,

7 it's not exactly clear to me just who did

8 what.

9 I mean she's clearly saying she

1004:27:46 thinks that we should post another one,

11 but the whole body of this is not -- I

12 mean how this all happened is not clear to

13 me.

14 Q. Right. But there was a plan --

1504:27:58 whatever the origin of the first clip,

16 there was a plan by MTV to release a

17 second clip regarding the Celebrity Rap

18 Superstar program, right?

19 A. Yes.

2004:28:11 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

21 A. It looks like that.

22 Q. Do you know from whom

23 Ms. Manning was waiting to receive another

24 clip to leak?

2504:28:19 A. I don't know.
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 Q. Do you know if the clip that's

3 being referenced in this e-mail contained

4 a call to action or a tune-in message?

504:28:45 A. I don't know.

6 MR. VOLKMER: I'd like to mark

7 Exhibit 34.

8 (Exarhos Exhibit 34, e-mail

9 thread, bearing Bates number

1004:29:56 VIA02359230 to 9232, marked for

11 identification, as of this date.)

12 Q. This is an e-mail bearing the

13 Bates number VIA02359230 to 9232.

14 (Witness reviews document.)

1504:30:04 A. Okay.

16 Q. Turning to the last e-mail in

17 the thread on September 19, 2007 at 12:23.

18 Ms. Manning writes, "The Perez Hilton

19 second leak video has 7,606 views in one

2004:30:36 day. Gawker ran the YouTube video, which

21 led to most of the views."

22 That e-mail suggests that MTV

23 leaked a second video to YouTube,

24 featuring Perez Hilton, to promote

2504:30:52 Celebrity Rap Superstar, right?
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

3 A. Well, there was definitely video

4 of the show and on all the sites that she

504:31:17 listed.

6 Q. Including YouTube?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. And MTV was responsible for the

9 leaking of that second Perez Hilton video,

1004:31:31 correct?

11 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

12 A. It's not clearly stated. I'm

13 not sure.

14 Q. Isn't that the most reasonable

1504:31:47 inference of this document, that MTV was

16 behind the leaking of the Perez Hilton

17 videos to promote the show Celebrity Rap

18 Superstar?

19 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

2004:32:02 A. We were definitely in promotion

21 mode for this show.

22 See, again, I can't say

23 definitively based on this e-mail, because

24 I wasn't overseeing this specific

2504:32:12 campaign. You could make that guess, but
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 I can't tell you definitively.

3 Q. Right. But you have

4 considerable expertise in marketing,

504:32:23 especially the marketing practices at MTV.

6 There might be no one who is more

7 qualified to make a guess about what's

8 happening in this e-mail than you. And I

9 want to know what you think is the most

1004:32:32 likely scenario here.

11 Is this clip being leaked to

12 YouTube with MTV's authorization?

13 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

14 A. Yeah. Well, I have expertise.

1504:32:50 I just don't have the specifics around

16 this campaign. So again, my guess,

17 without the definitive knowledge, is that

18 it was; but it's a guess, because I don't

19 have the information.

2004:33:03 Q. Okay. And if you could turn to

21 the last page.

22 A. Uh-hum.

23 Q. The title is More Perez Hilton

24 Freaking Out.

2504:33:17 Do you know what that video was?
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 A. It was, I believe it was from

3 the show Celebrity Rap Superstar. And

4 Perez Hilton was freaking out.

504:33:37 Q. And do you know if this

6 particular clip at 2359232 was authorized

7 to be on YouTube by MTV?

8 A. Again, I think this is the clip

9 that Andrea Manning is referring to, so --

1004:34:04 yeah. Again, we were promoting the show

11 at that time. I don't remember the

12 specifics of that clip, so I can't tell

13 you definitively.

14 Q. You don't know one way or the

1504:34:19 other whether this clip is authorized to

16 be on the YouTube service?

17 A. Around this specific clip, I

18 don't know.

19 Q. What would you need to find out?

2004:34:30 A. I could easily -- I could have

21 called on Andrea and found out. I mean

22 whoever was responsible for that campaign,

23 I would have been able to find out.

24 Q. And the user, the YouTube user

2504:34:42 here is gossip girl 40.
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 Are you familiar with that

3 YouTube user?

4 A. No.

504:34:48 Q. Have you ever heard that user

6 name before, gossipgirl40?

7 A. No.

8 Q. Do you know if that's somebody

9 at MTV?

1004:34:59 A. I don't.

11 Q. Do you know if it's someone

12 working at MTV's direction?

13 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

14 A. I don't.

1504:35:29 MR. WILKENS: Is this a good

16 time for a break?

17 MR. VOLKMER: It is. Let's take

18 a break.

19 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is

2004:35:34 4:36 p.m., and that's -- we are taking

21 a break.

22 (Whereupon, there is a recess in

23 the proceedings.)

24 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is

2504:49:42 4:50 p.m. and we are back on the
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 record.

3 Q. Back on.

4 Does MTV engage in any marketing

504:49:50 for shows that are no longer on the air

6 and for which they, they have not put out

7 a DVD?

8 A. Not that I can think of, no.

9 Q. Do you know why that is?

1004:50:05 A. Well, my primary goal, from a

11 marketing perspective, is to drive people

12 back to either watch our shows or go to

13 our website or buy our products. So if

14 there was no call to action like that,

1504:50:23 then we wouldn't be actively marketing

16 anything.

17 Q. Because there's nothing to

18 market, right?

19 A. Yeah.

2004:50:32 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

21 A. I can't think of an instance

22 where we would be.

23 Q. Okay. I'm going to read off a

24 list of shows that I have here, and I'd

2504:50:43 like you to tell me whether MTV or its
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 agents have ever uploaded clips from those

3 shows to YouTube.

4 Okay. Wonder Showzen?

504:50:53 A. Yes.

6 Q. Dancelife?

7 A. Yes.

8 Q. Rob and Big?

9 A. Yes.

1004:51:00 Q. A Shot At Love?

11 A. I'm sorry, go back. The

12 question was whether or not uploaded video

13 in support of all these?

14 Q. Whether MTV or its agents have

1504:51:09 ever uploaded clips --

16 A. Okay, sorry.

17 Q. -- from its -- for its shows to

18 YouTube.

19 I think you said yes for Rob and

2004:51:19 Big?

21 A. I don't know, the question was

22 so specific. On YouTube. I'd have to go

23 back and look at each of those campaigns,

24 but I think, just based on that grid we

2504:51:28 looked at, those would be yeses.
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 Q. A Shot At Love?

3 A. I think yes.

4 Q. FNMTV?

504:51:38 MR. WILKENS: Objection.

6 MR. VOLKMER: What's the

7 objection, Scott?

8 MR. WILKENS: It's speculative.

9 It calls for speculation. She just

1004:51:45 said she doesn't know. She'd have to

11 see a list or something.

12 MR. VOLKMER: I don't think

13 that's the testimony.

14 Q. The question is whether MTV or

1504:51:56 its agents have ever uploaded clips from

16 the shows that I'm listing to YouTube, and

17 we are on FN MTV.

18 A. I'm just not sure. You can go

19 through the list. I'm just not sure,

2004:52:08 specifically, about YouTube on each count.

21 So I can look back on any of them and find

22 out, if I needed to, but I just don't know

23 offhand for each of them, specifically.

24 Q. Sure. So I just would like to

2504:52:19 know whether you know one way or the
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 other. And if you don't know, that's

3 fine.

4 If you do know, under oath, you

504:52:27 need to tell me that MTV has uploaded

6 clips to YouTube, if you are aware of that

7 fact.

8 A. Okay.

9 Q. FN MTV?

1004:52:36 A. I don't know.

11 Q. Where My Dog's At?

12 A. I don't know.

13 Q. Two-a-Days?

14 A. I believe so.

1504:53:21 Q. Yo Momma?

16 A. I believe so.

17 Q. Pimp My Ride?

18 A. I don't know.

19 Q. Engaged and Underaged?

2004:53:36 A. I don't know.

21 Q. Beavis and Butthead?

22 A. I don't know.

23 Q. Wild N Out?

24 A. I believe so.

2504:53:50 Q. Human Giant?
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Adventures in Hollywood?

4 A. I don't know.

504:53:59 Q. Exposed?

6 A. I don't know.

7 Q. Cribs?

8 A. I don't know.

9 Q. Maui Fever?

1004:54:08 A. I believe so.

11 Q. Daria?

12 A. I don't know.

13 Q. Wild Boys?

14 A. Don't know.

1504:54:23 Q. Run's house?

16 A. I believe so.

17 Q. Jackass?

18 A. I don't know.

19 Q. Andy Milonakis Show?

2004:54:36 A. Yes.

21 Q. Cheyenne?

22 A. I believe so.

23 Q. Punked?

24 A. I don't know.

2504:54:44 Q. The Hills?



c6265d65-63a8-4fa4-b560-413d94551958

805 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

Page 248

1 T. EXARHOS

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Celebrity Death Match?

4 A. Yes.

504:54:53 Q. The Duel?

6 A. I believe so.

7 Q. Laguna Beach?

8 A. I believe so.

9 Q. 24/7?

1004:55:04 A. I don't know.

11 Q. Real World?

12 A. I don't know.

13 Q. Celebrity Rap Superstar?

14 A. Yes.

1504:55:18 Q. My Super Sweet 16?

16 A. I want to go back. Celebrity

17 Rap Superstar, I'm not sure.

18 Q. Okay. My Super Sweet 16?

19 A. I don't know.

2004:55:31 Q. Making The Band?

21 A. I don't know.

22 Q. Little Talent Show?

23 A. I believe so.

24 Q. Life of Ryan?

2504:55:41 A. I don't know.
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1 T. EXARHOS

2 Q. And when did you first become

3 aware of YouTube?

4 A. I think sometime in 2006.

504:55:57 Q. And how did you become aware of

6 YouTube for the first time?

7 A. I don't remember exactly.

8 Q. Do you have a YouTube account?

9 A. I don't.

1004:56:11 Q. Have you ever uploaded videos to

11 YouTube?

12 A. No.

13 Q. Do you know of other MTV

14 employees who have YouTube user accounts?

1504:56:23 A. Not that I'm aware of.

16 Q. Are you aware of MTV employees

17 uploading video clips to YouTube?

18 A. I don't have any specific

19 knowledge.

2004:56:35 Q. Do you have any generalized

21 knowledge of that practice, MTV employees

22 uploading clips to YouTube?

23 A. No.

24 Q. We had discussed earlier that

2504:56:49 MTV sometimes engages in viral marketing
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YouTube - Todd n Tyler - VH1 Classic Page 1 of2 

~rl~e(Y) i Engiish Sign Up i auicklisi(0) i Help i Sign In 

Home Videos Channels Community 

Videos ~!ISearch:ladvaced Upload L--~ 

Tddd n Tyler -VH1 Classic 

From: dickpaynemore.j"f~ Subscribe j 
/idded: November 1Y, 2006 

~ / Syndicated radio show. Jeremy made it into this clip. 

URL i http:l/www.youlube.cornlwatch7v=1HDRtaUGIlw 

Embed : <object width-"425" heighC"344"><param name="movie" ~. 

More From: dickpayne 

Related Videos 

Todd n Tyler - Guy Bang'n Your Mom 
02:00 Frol-n: dickpayne 
Views: 31,075 

Britney Spears before MTV VMA Music 
Awards Secret Video 

02:32 From: tonyfamous 
Views: 45.270 

Todd and Tyler Revealed #2 on KMTV 
05:36 From: LankBadly 

:ii~i Views: 4,836 

j.ate: nr ia!inss \liews: 22,038 / i~ Todd N iyler Morning Snov - aii212~1: Bobcat Goldthwait 

i Share Favorite Piayl!sts E!ag 10:19 From: TheBobcatChannel 
········--··-······-···--·· ~i_aee~ _~~_~~ Views: 2,944 

3 Doors Down - Here Without You: Rev 

MySpace Facebook Digg r?.ore.s!rare.~!~!~enS j I MTVNH1 Cut 
04:00 From:~?U~C_gTqU_P_~~~~~~~~~~~~_~~~~~ 

Commentary Statistics & Data 
Promoted Videos 

Video Kesponses: O Text Comments: 7 

Video Responses (0) Sign in to post a Video Response 

Text Comments (7) Sign in to post a Comment ~ O.J,'s guilty, New York Unk "Sh ow Oct 4 The 

Show: :~-lorbeiler!::_~.~i8lp T.O.'s s... SteatWith Out'~ ; Eco-Enve 04:35 Red... official ... lope 
-·······-··- · · ~statbeastsp... 01:18 03:41 04:24 

tremontisidol (6 months ago) Ree!y. expertvillage KOCHRECORDSTheWeatherC... 
british broadcasting corporation lol love this shit 

OTR·1IN !1 year ago) pep!~ 

i .~ there from nebraska I have net em there funny as fuck 
aciddrinker (1 year ago) Ree!y 
is it those who made south park? 

RubeMeek (1 year ago) Ree!~ 0\\ 
I hope VH1 goes bankrupt. Flavor Flav seasons 1 and 2 then I 

i love whore seasons 1 and 2. surreal life finale came down to a 
dyke deciding who can dance better between traci bingham and 

: ron jeremy. mick jaggers wifes show was a joke, charm school = 
joke, fit club's harvey has no clue what a max heart rate grid is 
and will kill someone in the shows existence and finally the oh so 1~ 
annoying celeb critic shows where 2 home's rate peoples style. 

j Joke of a station and Marc Cronin can rot in hell!!l 

TripOnTheDog (lyoiagoi ~p!y o\\ 
down this video any day now. 
CBS as in Viacom who is probably going to make them take 

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1HDRtaUG1Iw 10/13/2008 



YouTube - Todd n Tyler - VH1 Classic Page 2 of2 

Pink2006Princess (1 year ago) flee!u. 0\\ 
j pretty gd, well done 

: llBldyt.(1yoaraso, 
Remember the band Konnektion? They made a honor movie 
called the Keyboardist. It's preny bad.... 

View all 7 comments 

~ Would you like to comment? 
i Join YouTube for a free account, orsian in if you are already a member. 

L~ill~d~ --~~~ ~Videos -~I:gea~h ii ~e_T~C~ 

YourAccount i Help&lnfo j YouTube 

Yidaes ?n~I j t~alp.ResOurceS ~amm~ih~.Hel~ i .Csmna~y~Lnto~ 
EarariPzs Slhhs~r~inns j Sar~lj~Bs ~apJ~ght_N_Q~i~l~S. : ~S~L~Zr 
PlaVlists more... j DevelooerAPls Community Guidelines j TermsofUse Bloa 
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1 TEIFELD

213:31:18 Q Do you recall trying to promote the viewing

313:31:21 of the video in Exhibit 34?

413:31:26 A Yes.

513:31:26 Q How did you do so?

613:31:28 A I reached out to online partners and websites

713:31:33 and asked them to promote it. I had communication

813:31:36 with YouTube about it.

913:31:38 Q Who at YouTube did you communicate about it?

1013:31:41 A I don't recall.

1113:31:42 Q What was the substance of your communication

1213:31:44 with YouTube about it?

1313:31:47 A I e-mailed them to see if they would feature

1413:31:50 it.

1513:31:50 Q Who at YouTube did you e-mail?

1613:31:53 A I don't recall.

1713:31:53 Q Did you e-mail anyone in particular or did

1813:31:55 you e-mail a general editor inbox at YouTube?

1913:32:00 A I believe I e-mailed Kevin, and then he

2013:32:04 instructed me to e-mail to the editors of YouTube, but

2113:32:08 I don't -- I don't recall the exact communication.

2213:32:23 Q Do you know if any other videos were uploaded

2313:32:25 in connection with this -- pardon me.

2413:32:29 Do you know if Paramount uploaded any other

2513:32:33 videos in connection with the online promotion of "The
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1 TEIFELD

213:32:36 Heartbreak Kid"?

313:32:36 MS. CUNHA: To YouTube?

413:32:38 MR. RUBIN: To YouTube.

513:32:41 THE WITNESS: I don't recall.

613:32:49 MR. RUBIN: 28.

713:33:13 (Document marked Teifeld Exhibit 35

813:33:14 for identification.)

913:33:14 MR. RUBIN: I'd like to introduce Exhibit

1013:33:26 No. 35. Exhibit No. 35 is a document produced by

1113:33:39 Viacom in this action bearing Bates No. VIA00378484.

1213:33:47 Q Do you recognize this document?

1313:33:48 A Yes.

1413:33:48 Q What is this document?

1513:33:50 A It's a document from me asking the ICED Media

1613:33:55 team to get people to write to the editors at YouTube

1713:34:00 to get this clip featured on the Homepage.

1813:34:03 Q What clip is this referring to?

1913:34:11 A I don't know.

2013:34:12 Q Doesn't the document in fact say, "We need to

2113:34:18 urgently have everyone we know write in to the editor

2213:34:22 at YouTube requesting to get this clip as a 'Featured

2313:34:26 Video' on the homepage"?

2413:34:27 A Yes.

2513:34:27 Q What was urgent about this?
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1 TEIFELD

213:34:33 A We wanted to get the clip viewed.

313:34:40 Q 21 and 22.

413:35:07 (Document marked Teifeld Exhibit 36

513:35:09 for identification.)

613:35:09 MR. RUBIN: I'd like to introduce Exhibit

713:35:11 No. 36. Exhibit 36 is a document produced by Viacom

813:35:38 in this action bearing Bates No. VIA00378497 through

913:35:45 VIA00378498.

1013:35:52 Q Do you recognize this document, Ms. Teifeld?

1113:35:57 A Yes.

1213:35:57 Q Does this document refresh your recollection

1313:35:58 as to the identity of the video referenced in

1413:36:01 Exhibit 35?

1513:36:02 A No, I don't know if that's the same -- the

1613:36:07 same clip.

1713:36:07 Q Let's see if we can solve this.

1813:36:10 A Yeah.

1913:36:14 (Document marked Teifeld Exhibit 37

2013:36:15 for identification.)

2113:36:15 MR. RUBIN: I'd like to introduce Exhibit

2213:36:17 No. 37. Exhibit 37 is a screen capture as opposed to

2313:36:34 a printout of the web page located at

2413:36:37 http://Latinoreview.com/news.php?id=2937. It was

2513:36:51 downloaded early this morning.
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1 TEIFELD

213:37:06 Q If you look, Ms. Teifeld, at Exhibit 36, it

313:37:09 references this particular URL --

413:37:11 A Yes.

513:37:11 Q -- for which Exhibit 37 is a screen shot.

613:37:14 A Yes.

713:37:14 Q There is a video, a YouTube video on

813:37:21 Exhibit 37.

913:37:23 A Yes.

1013:37:23 Q Do you recognize that video now that you see

1113:37:26 this opening page to it?

1213:37:28 A Yes, but I still don't know if it's the same

1313:37:31 video we're referring to in Exhibit 35.

1413:37:35 Q Fair enough.

1513:37:35 What is this video?

1613:37:42 A It's a clip from the film.

1713:37:44 Q From what film?

1813:37:45 A From "The Heartbreak Kid."

1913:37:47 Q What is it a clip of?

2013:37:53 A It's a scene from the film.

2113:37:58 Q Do you know what the clip is, what the

2213:38:00 content of the clip is?

2313:38:02 A Yes.

2413:38:02 Q Do you know who uploaded this video?

2513:38:10 A I don't know who uploaded it.
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1 TEIFELD

213:38:11 Q Do you know if it was uploaded by someone at

313:38:13 Paramount?

413:38:15 A I don't recall.

513:38:15 Q If you refer to Exhibit 36 --

613:38:34 A Uh-huh.

713:38:36 Q -- do you see the first-in-time e-mail from

813:38:41 Scott Hurwitz to you?

913:38:43 A Yes.

1013:38:43 Q What is the subject line of that e-mail?

1113:38:46 A "Who we've sent the queef clip to."

1213:38:51 Q Is he referring to the clip in Exhibit 37?

1313:38:55 A Yes.

1413:38:56 Q And isn't that the very clip that you

1513:39:03 e-mailed him about the day prior seeking him to write

1613:39:08 in to the YouTube editors to get it featured?

1713:39:12 A I don't know.

1813:39:13 Q What would you need to do to confirm that?

1913:39:16 A I don't know. I would need to compare the

2013:39:19 clips.

2113:39:19 Q How often do you write to Scott Hurwitz

2213:39:25 asking him to urgently have everyone write in to the

2313:39:28 editors at YouTube to feature a video?

2413:39:33 A It depends. Each campaign is different.

2513:39:36 I've had him urgently do a lot of things on a lot of
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1 TEIFELD

213:39:42 campaigns.

313:39:42 Q Okay. That really wasn't my specific

413:39:43 question.

513:39:44 How often do you urgently ask Scott Hurwitz

613:39:48 to write in to the editors at YouTube to feature a

713:39:54 video?

813:39:54 A I don't know.

913:39:54 Q You've done it more than once?

1013:39:56 A I have done it more than once.

1113:39:57 Q And you can't recall how many times you've

1213:40:01 done that?

1313:40:01 A No.

1413:40:01 Q And you have no idea how this video was

1513:40:11 uploaded?

1613:40:12 A I don't remember.

1713:40:13 Q Did Paramount use online marketing to promote

1813:40:46 the film "Beowulf"?

1913:40:49 A Yes.

2013:40:50 Q What was your role in connection with the

2113:40:51 online marketing of the film "Beowulf"?

2213:40:55 A I handled the online publicity.

2313:40:58 Q What did you do in connection with the online

2413:41:00 publicity for the online promotion of the Paramount

2513:41:00 film "Beowulf"?
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213:41:04 A Syndication of content, arrange interviews

313:41:06 with talent.

413:41:14 Q What do you mean by "syndication of content"?

513:41:17 A Getting websites to promote our approved

613:41:20 content for the film.

713:41:26 Q Did your approved content for "Beowulf"

813:41:34 include clips from the film?

913:41:37 A Yes.

1013:41:44 MR. RUBIN: 76.

1113:41:44 (Document marked Teifeld Exhibit 38

1213:42:03 for identification.)

1313:42:03 MR. RUBIN: I'd like to introduce Exhibit

1413:42:19 No. 38. Exhibit 38 is a document produced by Viacom

1513:42:23 bearing Bates Nos. VIA00702736 through VIA00702738.

1613:43:16 THE WITNESS: Okay.

1713:43:18 MR. RUBIN: Q. Do you recognize this

1813:43:18 document?

1913:43:19 A Yes.

2013:43:19 Q What is it?

2113:43:23 A It is a plan from ICED Media for the film

2213:43:30 "Beowulf."

2313:43:30 Q Do you know if this plan was accepted?

2413:43:32 A I do not know.

2513:43:33 MS. CUNHA: I would just note for the record
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1
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10
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1 Witt

2 10:38:07 research?

3 10:38:10 A. That there were a number of views

4 10:38:12 of those clips on YouTube.

5 10:38:14 Q. And why did you ask him to do that

6 10:38:20 research?

7 10:38:21 A. She's actually --

8 10:38:22 Q. Oh, sorry. Why did you ask her to

9 10:38:26 do that research?

10 10:38:28 A. Because we were curious where those

11 10:38:30 clips were showing up. And how much traffic

12 10:38:33 they were getting.

13 10:38:35 Q. And where were they showing up?

14 10:38:38 A. On YouTube and some other video

15 10:38:42 sites. I believe, I don't remember any of

16 10:38:45 the others.

17 10:38:46 Q. And how much traffic?

18 10:38:49 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

19 10:38:50 A. I don't remember.

20 10:38:56 Q. Did you believe that Colbert

21 10:39:00 "Greenscreen" clips were receiving a

22 10:39:03 significant amount of traffic?

23 10:39:05 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

24 10:39:05 A. I recall it was in the millions,

25 10:39:19 vaguely, millions of views, I believe.
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1 Witt

2 10:39:21 Q. And what exactly was the

3 10:39:29 "Greenscreen Challenge"?

4 10:39:31 A. Stephen Colbert filmed himself in

5 10:39:35 front of a "Greenscreen" on television and

6 10:39:38 challenged his audience to create mashups.

7 10:39:41 Q. And his audience proceeded to

8 10:39:44 create mashups; correct?

9 10:39:46 A. Some audience did, yeah.

10 10:39:49 Q. And posted those videos on sites

11 10:39:51 like YouTube and other UGC sites?

12 10:39:55 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

13 10:39:56 A. That's my -- at least on YouTube,

14 10:39:56 yes.

15 10:40:03 Q. Is it your belief that those

16 10:40:05 "Greenscreen" videos that were created in

17 10:40:07 response to Mr. Colbert's challenge are

18 10:40:11 authorized on UGC sites?

19 10:40:14 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

20 10:40:17 A. I'm not sure, I don't understand

21 10:40:19 the question.

22 10:40:19 Q. Sure. I'll restate it. Do you

23 10:40:22 believe that the "Greenscreen" videos that

24 10:40:23 appeared on UGC sites are authorized?

25 10:40:27 MS. TENNEY: Objection.
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1 Witt

2 10:40:27 A. Authorized by who?

3 10:40:29 Q. By Viacom?

4 10:40:30 A. Oh, I have no knowledge.

5 10:40:32 Q. You don't know if those videos are

6 10:40:35 authorized or not?

7 10:40:36 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

8 10:40:36 A. Can you -- I don't understand

9 10:40:39 authorized.

10 10:40:40 Q. Would it constitute copyright

11 10:40:43 infringement?

12 10:40:44 MS. TENNEY: Objection, calls for

13 10:40:46 legal conclusion.

14 10:40:47 MR. VOLKMER: Ms. Tenney, if you

15 10:40:48 could just wait until I finish the

16 10:40:51 question before you state your

17 10:40:52 objection.

18 10:40:52 Q. Would it constitute copyright

19 10:40:55 infringement for a user to have created a

20 10:40:57 mashup of the Colbert "Greenscreen" and post

21 10:41:00 that video to user generated content websites

22 10:41:03 like YouTube.

23 10:41:04 MS. TENNEY: Objection, calls for

24 10:41:05 legal conclusion.

25 10:41:07 A. I don't know.
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1 Witt

2 10:41:07 Q. Do you have a personal opinion?

3 10:41:21 A. No.

4 10:41:21 Q. You don't have opinion one way or

5 10:41:25 another whether that constitutes copyright

6 10:41:27 infringement?

7 10:41:27 MS. TENNEY: Objection, calls for

8 10:41:28 legal conclusion.

9 10:41:31 A. No.

10 10:41:35 Q. Do you view that behavior of

11 10:41:37 creating mashups of the Colbert "Greenscreen"

12 10:41:40 as being positive?

13 10:41:42 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

14 10:41:42 A. I think it was consistent with what

15 10:41:51 Colbert wanted them to do, so.

16 10:41:54 Q. And consistent with what Viacom

17 10:42:00 wanted users to do too; correct?

18 10:42:04 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

19 10:42:04 A. I don't even know who would be able

20 10:42:08 to answer that question for Viacom.

21 10:42:10 Q. Did any Viacom employees create

22 10:42:17 mashups in response to the "Greenscreen

23 10:42:20 Challenge"?

24 10:42:20 MS. TENNEY: Objection, foundation.

25 10:42:21 A. I don't know.
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1 Witt

2 10:42:22 Q. Did you create any videos in

3 10:42:26 response to the "Greenscreen Challenge"?

4 10:42:29 A. No.

5 10:42:49 Q. So aside from the instance where

6 10:42:52 you asked Alden Mitchell to ascertain some

7 10:42:56 data regarding the "Greenscreen Challenge,"

8 10:42:58 what other research did you do regarding

9 10:43:01 YouTube prior to Google's acquisition?

10 10:43:17 A. I can only recall one other piece

11 10:43:34 of research and I'm not sure that I requested

12 10:43:41 it.

13 10:43:41 Q. And what was that piece of

14 10:43:42 research?

15 10:43:44 A. Alden Mitchell had pointed out to

16 10:43:46 me at one point that the single most popular

17 10:43:50 clips on YouTube were largely user generated.

18 10:43:56 Q. So prior to Google's acquisition of

19 10:44:14 YouTube, who else at Viacom was involved in

20 10:44:17 negotiations with YouTube regarding a

21 10:44:18 potential deal?

22 10:44:22 A. To my knowledge, and, again, I'm

23 10:44:29 not sure they were negotiations, the people

24 10:44:33 who were participating were Bob Bakish and

25 10:44:37 Adam Cahan.
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1 Witt

2 14:48:50 Q. Right. Do you know if anyone at

3 14:48:51 Viacom has ever uploaded videos to the

4 14:48:54 YouTube website?

5 14:48:55 MS. TENNEY: And I'll restate the

6 14:48:57 same objections.

7 14:48:58 A. You know, gosh, I don't know. I

8 14:49:18 remember Jason Hershorn (phonetic) at one

9 14:49:18 time, and I'm not sure if he was making a

10 14:49:20 joke or not, talked about uploading some Bar

11 14:49:24 Mitzvah videos.

12 14:49:27 Greg Clayman has uploaded some

13 14:49:29 videos of his kids and his wife, I think. My

14 14:49:52 guess is there is more, but those are the

15 14:49:54 ones I can think of.

16 14:49:55 Q. So besides Jason Hershorn and Greg

17 14:50:02 Clayman, you can't think of any other

18 14:50:04 instances where Viacom employees uploaded

19 14:50:06 videos to the YouTube website?

20 14:50:30 A. There may be others, but I can't

21 14:50:32 recall.

22 14:50:32 Q. Have you ever viewed video clips on

23 14:50:41 the YouTube website containing Viacom content

24 14:50:44 that you believed were not authorized by

25 14:50:47 Viacom?
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1 Witt

2 14:50:48 MS. TENNEY: Objection. To the

3 14:50:51 extent that it calls for a legal

4 14:50:52 conclusion and also that it's vague.

5 14:50:56 A. By authorized, I've watched, I've

6 14:51:07 seen Viacom content on YouTube.

7 14:51:10 Q. And have you ever seen Viacom

8 14:51:12 content on YouTube that you thought was

9 14:51:14 unauthorized?

10 14:51:14 A. I'm not sure I know what

11 14:51:16 unauthorized means, in what sense?

12 14:51:20 Q. Whether Viacom was permitting that

13 14:51:22 content to be on YouTube?

14 14:51:25 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

15 14:51:27 A. I wouldn't know.

16 14:51:30 Q. What information would you need to

17 14:51:33 make that determination?

18 14:51:35 A. Probably someone from legal telling

19 14:51:38 me if it was -- I mean if it were authorized,

20 14:51:44 that would be a determination I imagine legal

21 14:51:48 would be able to answer.

22 14:51:49 THE WITNESS: Could I take a quick

23 14:51:51 bathroom break?

24 14:51:52 MR. VOLKMER: Break, yeah.

25 14:51:53 THE WITNESS: Yes.
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2 14:51:54 MR. VOLKMER: We can go off the

3 14:51:56 record.

4 14:51:56 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is

5 14:52:02 2:54 p.m. We're going off the record.

6 14:52:04 (A brief recess was taken.)

7 15:07:32 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is

8 15:07:38 3:07 p.m. We're back on the record.

9 15:07:41 BY MR. VOLKMER:

10 15:07:41 Q. Before the break you had testified

11 15:07:44 that you had viewed Viacom content on the

12 15:07:46 YouTube website; correct?

13 15:07:46 A. Yes.

14 15:07:50 Q. And were there ever instances where

15 15:07:53 you viewed content that had been authorized

16 15:07:55 by Viacom?

17 15:07:56 MS. TENNEY: Objection, to the

18 15:07:57 extent it calls for a legal conclusion.

19 15:08:02 (Discussion off the record.)

20 15:08:04 MS. TENNEY: And that it's vague.

21 15:08:05 A. I suppose it's possible that Viacom

22 15:08:15 and YouTube had agreed to some kind of a deal

23 15:08:17 to authorize the content but not that I was

24 15:08:21 aware of.

25 15:08:22 Q. Not that you were aware of when you
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2 15:08:23 were looking at the content; correct?

3 15:08:25 MS. TENNEY: Objection.

4 15:08:26 A. Not that I was aware of, period.

5 15:08:28 Q. And had you seen some content on

6 15:08:38 the YouTube web site owned by Viacom that had

7 15:08:42 not been authorized?

8 15:08:43 MS. TENNEY: Objection, to the

9 15:08:45 extent it calls for a legal conclusion

10 15:08:49 and that it's vague.

11 15:08:50 A. Again, with regard to the content

12 15:08:53 that I had seen, I don't know if there was a

13 15:08:56 deal between say YouTube and Comedy Central

14 15:09:00 with regard to the content that would have

15 15:09:01 made it authorized or unauthorized.

16 15:09:16 MR. VOLKMER: Let me mark Exhibit

17 15:09:16 13.

18 15:09:16 (Deposition Exhibit 13, E-mail

19 15:09:16 dated 9/12/06, Bates No. VIA00232702,

20 15:09:49 marked for identification, this date.)

21 15:09:49 MR. VOLKMER: This is Bates number

22 15:09:51 VIA00232702.

23 15:09:55 A. Uh-huh.

24 15:09:55 Q. And if you could review the

25 15:10:02 document and let me know when you've had a
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2 15:10:05 chance to do so.

3 15:10:06 A. Okay.

4 15:10:55 Q. Have you had a chance to review the

5 15:10:58 document, Mr. Witt?

6 15:11:01 A. Almost.

7 15:11:01 Q. Almost there. Okay. Just let me

8 15:11:04 know.

9 15:11:09 A. Okay. I'm done.

10 15:11:13 THE WITNESS: Excuse me.

11 15:11:13 Q. Is this, does this e-mail of

12 15:11:19 September 12, 2006 refer to the analysis that

13 15:11:24 you had performed regarding the Stephen

14 15:11:28 Colbert "Greenscreen Challenge"?

15 15:11:29 MS. TENNEY: Objection, lack of

16 15:11:30 foundation.

17 15:11:30 A. I don't know if this is -- this is

18 15:11:38 an analysis, but this refers to the

19 15:11:44 "Greenscreen Challenge."

20 15:11:45 Q. And it says, "On YouTube there are

21 15:11:48 88 mashups," did you come to the

22 15:11:51 determination that there were 88 mashups on

23 15:11:55 YouTube of the Steve Colbert "Greenscreen

24 15:12:01 Challenge"?

25 15:12:01 MS. TENNEY: Objection, lack of
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2 15:12:02 foundation.

3 15:12:02 A. I'm trying to recall.

4 15:12:12 I don't remember exactly how I came

5 15:12:14 to that conclusion.

6 15:12:16 Q. Did you perform this analysis

7 15:12:19 yourself or did you have someone do it for

8 15:12:21 you?

9 15:12:21 MS. TENNEY: Objection, lack of

10 15:12:22 foundation.

11 15:12:22 A. I'm reading the e-mail since I

12 15:12:29 don't recall exactly, but it looks like I did

13 15:12:31 it myself.

14 15:12:31 Q. And do you know if you did that at

15 15:12:34 work or at home?

16 15:12:35 MS. TENNEY: Objection, lack of

17 15:12:36 foundation.

18 15:12:36 A. I would guess at work, but I can't

19 15:12:40 recall.

20 15:12:40 Q. And do you know if you were logged

21 15:12:46 into your YouTube account when you were

22 15:12:48 performing this analysis?

23 15:12:51 A. I don't recall.

24 15:12:51 Q. The 88 mashups that you noted in

25 15:13:10 this September 12, 2006 e-mail, do you
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2 15:13:13 believe that those mashups were authorized?

3 15:13:17 MS. TENNEY: Objection, lack of

4 15:13:19 foundation and calls for a legal

5 15:13:21 conclusion and vague.

6 15:13:22 A. I wouldn't know.

7 15:13:25 Q. Why wouldn't you know?

8 15:13:30 A. I don't know what it means to be

9 15:13:31 authorized.

10 15:13:31 Q. Permitted by the owner of the

11 15:13:33 copyright.

12 15:13:35 MS. TENNEY: Objection to the

13 15:13:36 extent it calls for a legal conclusion.

14 15:13:38 A. That would be a question I would

15 15:13:42 defer to.

16 15:13:42 Q. To who? To lawyers?

17 15:13:44 A. Uh-huh.

18 15:13:44 Q. Do you know one way or another

19 15:13:47 whether those 88 mashups infringed the

20 15:13:50 copyrights, any copyrights owned by Viacom?

21 15:13:52 MS. TENNEY: Objection to the

22 15:13:53 extent it calls for a legal conclusion.

23 15:13:54 A. Again, I would defer to the

24 15:13:56 lawyers.

25 15:13:56 Q. Do you have a personal view on
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2 15:13:58 that?

3 15:13:58 A. No.

4 15:13:59 Q. You have no personal view on

5 15:14:00 whether it's permissible to create mashups?

6 15:14:03 MS. TENNEY: Objection to the

7 15:14:04 extent it calls for a legal conclusion.

8 15:14:05 A. Again, I would defer, it's a legal

9 15:14:09 matter, I would defer it to the lawyers.

10 15:14:11 Q. But you have a JD; correct?

11 15:14:12 A. Uh-huh.

12 15:14:13 Q. And you're still unable to form a

13 15:14:16 view regarding whether creating a mashup

14 15:14:21 infringes a copyright?

15 15:14:22 MS. TENNEY: Objection, to the

16 15:14:23 extent it calls for a legal conclusion.

17 15:14:25 A. To be honest, I didn't go to my

18 15:14:28 copyright class all that often.

19 15:14:29 Q. Do you have any personal views on

20 15:14:36 whether things like mashups should be

21 15:14:39 permitted?

22 15:14:40 MS. TENNEY: Objection, vagueness,

23 15:14:42 grounds and to the extent it calls for a

24 15:14:44 legal conclusion.

25 15:14:44 A. What do you mean by should be
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2 15:14:48 permitted?

3 15:14:49 Q. Should be lawful?

4 15:14:50 MS. TENNEY: Objection to the

5 15:14:51 extent it calls for a legal conclusion.

6 15:14:53 A. No, I don't have an opinion.

7 15:14:54 Q. From a policy perspective, you

8 15:14:57 don't have a view one way or the other

9 15:14:58 regarding whether a user should be able to

10 15:15:00 create mashups?

11 15:15:04 A. Without the consent of --

12 15:15:09 Q. To take it out -- I'm sorry, if I

13 15:15:12 cut you off. But to take it out of

14 15:15:14 abstraction in this particular instance where

15 15:15:17 the, where an individual specifically

16 15:15:19 requested that users create mashups, do you

17 15:15:22 have any view whether users should then be

18 15:15:25 able to create mashups?

19 15:15:26 MS. TENNEY: Objection to the

20 15:15:27 extent it calls for a legal conclusion

21 15:15:29 and that it's vague.

22 15:15:30 A. Again, to me this would be a legal

23 15:15:33 conclusion.

24 15:15:33 Q. I'm not asking for a legal

25 15:15:44 conclusion. I'm asking for your own personal
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1 McGRATH

2 Q. Do you think that if this had

3 been a clip from the Daily Show rather

4 than Saturday Night Live, that you would

5 04:28:47 have been harming Viacom by forwarding it

6 to Mr. Herzog and saying, watch it right

7 now?

8 MS. KOHLMANN: Again, objection.

9 A. Well, if it were the Daily Show

10 04:28:56 and it were Mr. Herzog, I would say you

11 would be looking at a clip of the show or

12 from our own website, if it were the Daily

13 Show.

14 Q. Okay.

15 04:29:14 A. You are asking me to speculate,

16 so.

17 Q. Well, I guess I'm trying to

18 understand why you felt comfortable

19 forwarding this to other people.

20 04:29:24 A. I said I didn't think it was the

21 appropriate thing to do.

22 Q. In hindsight, in light of this

23 litigation, right?

24 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

25 04:29:30 Misstates the record.
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2 A. No. No, not in light of this

3 litigation. In light of learning a lot

4 more over the years.

5 04:29:45 Q. Ms. McGrath, in 2007,

6 March 2007, how long had you been in the

7 entertainment industry?

8 A. A long time.

9 Q. A long time is what?

10 04:29:59 A. Twenty plus years.

11 Q. And you had been the chairman

12 and CEO of a major entertainment company,

13 MTV Networks, for at least three years,

14 right?

15 04:30:09 A. Yes.

16 Q. You had been at MTVN television

17 for a couple of decades?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And you couldn't tell, by

20 04:30:18 looking at this particular clip, whether

21 it was authorized to be on YouTube or not?

22 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection. The

23 record is clear.

24 A. I don't remember the clip. I

25 04:30:29 don't remember what it was on -- what was
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2 on it or what I looked at.

3 Q. Couldn't you tell by looking at

4 any clip, given that vast experience in

5 04:30:37 the entertainment industry, whether it was

6 authorized to be on YouTube?

7 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

8 A. I believe this is a matter for a

9 distributor to know whether or not this

10 04:31:03 is -- by looking at something, whether or

11 not it's legitimate.

12 Q. I'm asking you, though,

13 Ms. McGrath, could you, given your vast

14 experience in the television industry,

15 04:31:11 identify which clips are authorized and

16 which clips are not, by looking at them?

17 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

18 A. No.

19 MR. KRAMER: Let's have this one

20 04:31:43 marked as 32, I think, right?

21 (McGrath Exhibit 32, e-mail

22 from Judy McGrath to Van Toffler,

23 dated October 2, 2007, subject line,

24 Go To YouTube, marked for

25 04:31:59 identification, as of this date.)
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2 Q. Ms. McGrath, Exhibit 32 is an

3 e-mail you sent to Van Toffler, October 2,

4 2007, produced to us in discovery by

5 04:32:06 Viacom. I'll represent to you that it's

6 some six months after the onset of this

7 litigation. The subject line of the

8 message is Go To YouTube.

9 Do you recognize this?

10 04:32:20 A. What do you mean, do I remember

11 it? I don't remember it.

12 But I recognize the e-mail.

13 Q. Okay. In your message you give

14 Mr. Toffler instructions on how to find

15 04:32:37 the number of copyrighted clips on the

16 YouTube service, right?

17 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

18 A. I just said I couldn't tell

19 whether they were copyrighted or not.

20 04:32:46 Q. Well, you could tell they were

21 copyrighted. You couldn't tell whether

22 they were authorized or not, right?

23 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

24 Q. You understand there's a

25 04:32:54 difference between copyrighted and
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2 authorized, correct?

3 A. No.

4 Q. Why were you sending Mr. Toffler

5 04:33:04 instructions on how to find these clips?

6 A. I don't recall.

7 Q. You had already watched the

8 clips you were suggesting Mr. Toffler

9 search for, right?

10 04:33:18 A. It sounds like I was.

11 Q. Sounds like you had?

12 A. Sounds like I had.

13 Q. The first clip that you

14 suggested he watch, "While My Guitar," is

15 04:33:38 a video of an Asian ukulele player playing

16 While My Guitar Gently Weeps, the Beatles

17 song, on his ukulele, right?

18 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

19 Q. That's what you are suggesting

20 04:33:52 Mr. Toffler watch?

21 A. Right.

22 Q. Pretty amazing clip, right?

23 A. Pretty amazing clip? I don't

24 remember it. I don't remember the clip.

25 04:34:09 Q. Did you own -- do you own any
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2 publishing rights to the song, While My

3 Guitar Gently Weeps, by the Beatles?

4 A. No.

5 04:34:17 Q. Does Viacom?

6 A. Not to my knowledge.

7 Q. Does Mr. Toffler?

8 A. No.

9 Q. Was that clip authorized by the

10 04:34:25 holder of the copyright and the

11 composition to the song, While My Guitar

12 Gently Weeps, to be on YouTube?

13 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

14 A. I don't know.

15 04:34:32 Q. And you couldn't tell by

16 watching the video, right?

17 A. No.

18 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

19 Q. Why not?

20 04:34:40 A. Why not. I'm not sure why not.

21 Q. You are not sure why you

22 couldn't tell whether it was authorized to

23 be on YouTube?

24 A. I said I couldn't tell.

25 04:35:06 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.
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2 A. I don't know why not. I just

3 couldn't tell.

4 Q. Do you think it was an

5 04:35:11 infringement of the musical composition,

6 the playing --

7 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

8 Q. -- of the composition on a

9 ukulele?

10 04:35:18 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

11 A. I'm not sure.

12 Q. You encouraged Mr. Toffler to

13 view it anyway, right?

14 A. I did.

15 04:35:25 Q. Not knowing whether it was

16 authorized to be on YouTube or not?

17 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

18 A. Right.

19 Q. And if it turns out that the

20 04:35:33 clip was not authorized to be on YouTube,

21 should you be liable for copyright

22 infringement for encouraging Mr. Toffler

23 to watch it?

24 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection. Calls

25 04:35:41 for a legal conclusion.
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2 A. I'm not sure.

3 Q. Should you be punished for

4 encouraging Mr. Toffler to watch this

5 04:36:33 video clip, if it turns out it wasn't

6 authorized to be viewed on YouTube?

7 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

8 A. If the owner of the copyright

9 determines that, I guess I would be.

10 04:36:48 Q. So should you have to pay the

11 owner of the copyright $150,000 for

12 sending this clip -- for encouraging

13 Mr. Toffler to watch this clip?

14 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection,

15 04:36:58 misstates the record.

16 MR. KRAMER: Susan, it's not

17 stating the record.

18 MS. KOHLMANN: You said send the

19 clip. There's no reference to a clip.

20 04:37:05 MR. KRAMER: Susan, that's not

21 the question.

22 MS. KOHLMANN: Okay, then ask

23 the right question.

24 MR. KRAMER: Oh, my Gosh.

25 04:37:10 Susan, that is totally disruptive of
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2 09:54:26 A More than five.

3 09:54:26 Q Okay. More than 100?

4 09:54:30 A More than 100? Not sure.

5 09:54:32 Q How often do you view videos on the YouTube

6 09:54:37 service?

7 09:54:38 A Once or twice a week.

8 09:54:40 Q Do you view videos on the YouTube service

9 09:54:44 while you're at work?

10 09:54:47 A Occasionally.

11 09:54:48 Q While you're at home?

12 09:54:49 A Occasionally.

13 09:54:50 Q While you're on the road?

14 09:54:51 A Occasionally.

15 09:54:52 Q Why do you use YouTube to view videos as

16 09:54:58 opposed to some other online video sharing service?

17 09:55:01 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

18 09:55:02 THE WITNESS: I use other video sharing, or

19 09:55:09 I -- I might watch video on the Internet in places

20 09:55:13 other than YouTube.

21 09:55:14 MR. KRAMER: Q. But why do you continue to

22 09:55:16 use YouTube today, given the existence of this

23 09:55:19 litigation?

24 09:55:20 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

25 09:55:21 THE WITNESS: I don't know.
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2 09:55:23 MR. KRAMER: Q. Do you find that the YouTube

3 09:55:29 video service has advantages over other online video

4 09:55:32 services?

5 09:55:36 A I find there's a lot of videos there.

6 09:55:40 Q Any other distinguishing characteristics of

7 09:55:45 the YouTube service vis-a-vis other online video

8 09:55:51 sharing services you've used?

9 09:55:52 A Couldn't say.

10 09:55:53 Q Okay. Do you consider your use of the

11 09:55:54 YouTube service to be legitimate?

12 09:55:56 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

13 09:55:57 You can answer.

14 09:55:58 THE WITNESS: I -- I do.

15 09:55:59 MR. KRAMER: Q. For the videos that you've

16 09:56:04 watched on YouTube, did you consider them to be

17 09:56:06 infringing any third party's copyrights?

18 09:56:12 A I wouldn't know.

19 09:56:12 Q What do you mean you wouldn't know?

20 09:56:14 A I -- I -- I'm just not that clear on -- I

21 09:56:16 wouldn't know.

22 09:56:16 Q Why not?

23 09:56:17 A I'm not a lawyer. I don't necessarily

24 09:56:19 understand the ins and outs of copyright infringement.

25 09:56:25 Q So in order to make a determination as to



805 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022 (212)705-8585
DAVID FELDMAN WORLDWIDE, INC.

20

1 HERZOG

2 09:56:27 whether a video you've watched on the YouTube service

3 09:56:29 was infringing a third-party's copyrights, you'd need

4 09:56:34 to be a lawyer?

5 09:56:35 A I just --

6 09:56:35 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection to form.

7 09:56:36 THE WITNESS: -- wouldn't know.

8 09:56:37 MR. KRAMER: Right.

9 09:56:38 Q I'm asking you why you wouldn't know.

10 09:56:40 A Because I would not know.

11 09:56:40 Q Well, don't you have the ability to tell when

12 09:56:43 you're looking at a particular video whether that

13 09:56:46 video is authorized by the copyright holder?

14 09:56:49 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

15 09:56:50 You can answer.

16 09:56:51 THE WITNESS: I wouldn't -- I -- I wouldn't

17 09:56:51 know unless it was my video.

18 09:56:53 MR. KRAMER: Q. Would you say you're a fan

19 09:57:06 of the YouTube service, Mr. Herzog?

20 09:57:09 A Yeah.

21 09:57:10 Q In fact, sir, you'd say you love YouTube;

22 09:57:15 right?

23 09:57:16 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection as to form.

24 09:57:18 You can answer.

25 09:57:19 THE WITNESS: I -- I would -- I would not.
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2 09:57:20 MR. KRAMER: Q. Have you said you love

3 09:57:22 YouTube?

4 09:57:22 A I may have said that, yeah.

5 09:57:24 Q Okay. Any un- -- any uncertainty in your

6 09:57:26 mind as to whether it was said?

7 09:57:28 A No.

8 09:57:28 Q You did say it; right?

9 09:57:30 A I think I may have it.

10 09:57:31 Q Okay. Let's have this marked as Exhibit 1 to

11 09:57:44 Mr. Herzog's deposition.

12 09:57:57 (Document marked Herzog Exhibit 1

13 09:58:09 for identification.)

14 09:58:09 MS. KOHLMANN: I'm sorry. The exhibit, have

15 09:58:10 you marked it?

16 09:58:11 THE REPORTER: Yes.

17 09:58:12 MS. KOHLMANN: I just didn't see it; okay.

18 09:58:28 MR. KRAMER: Showing you what's been marked

19 09:58:29 as Exhibit 1 to your deposition, Mr. Herzog, it's a

20 09:58:33 three-page document produced to us by Viacom in

21 09:58:35 discovery, bearing Bates No. VIA02415511 to 13.

22 09:58:45 Q Let me ask you, as you look through it,

23 09:58:48 whether you recognize this document?

24 09:58:50 A Yes.

25 09:58:51 Q Okay. What is it?
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2 17:05:44 potential relevance to this case?

3 17:05:45 A I'm not sure what would make it relevant to

4 17:05:47 the case. So if it didn't sort of scream to me this

5 17:05:51 has got something to do with YouTube and Viacom, I

6 17:05:55 probably would have thrown it away.

7 17:05:57 Q Have you ever had an occasion where you were

8 17:05:59 about to throw something away and it screamed to you

9 17:06:03 this has something to do with the case, I better not

10 17:06:04 throw it away?

11 17:06:05 A No.

12 17:06:05 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

13 17:06:12 MR. KRAMER: Q. On those rare occasions in

14 17:06:23 which you use instant messaging for purposes of work,

15 17:06:26 with whom do you instant message with?

16 17:06:27 A I think it's mostly people from the outside.

17 17:06:30 You know, there -- when you sign on your computer, the

18 17:06:31 AIM thing, for whatever reason, kind of comes up

19 17:06:35 first, and so it sort of signs you on automatically.

20 17:06:37 And so sometimes it's on and I don't know it, and all

21 17:06:38 of a sudden bling, and all of a sudden you see my name

22 17:06:42 up there and IME, and, you know, I might ding them

23 17:06:42 back for a few seconds and then, you know, get back to

24 17:06:46 work. It's generally people from the outside or my

25 17:06:48 daughter.
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2 17:07:06 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Counsel, your paper is on

3 17:07:07 your microphone.

4 17:07:24 MR. KRAMER: Let's just go off the record

5 17:07:26 just for a second.

6 17:07:27 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Going off the record now

7 17:07:28 at 5:09.

8 17:07:31 (Recess taken.)

9 17:09:55 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Okay. We're back on the

10 17:09:56 record now at 5:12.

11 17:09:58 MR. KRAMER: Q. Mr. Herzog, do you send a

12 17:10:02 group of your friends CDs containing a selection of

13 17:10:05 songs each year?

14 17:10:06 A I do.

15 17:10:06 Q Sort of a "Doug Herzog Songs of the Year" CD?

16 17:10:10 A Yes.

17 17:10:10 Q How many people would you say you send that

18 17:10:13 CD to each year?

19 17:10:14 A Oh, 50, 60.

20 17:10:15 Q Do you send your songs with your CDs to any

21 17:10:15 of your coworkers at Viacom?

22 17:10:20 A Yeah.

23 17:10:20 Q Who?

24 17:10:21 A Oh, gosh, Judy McGrath, Van Toffler, Michelle

25 17:10:25 Ganeless, Eric Flannigan.
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2 17:10:27 Q And you've been doing this on an annual basis

3 17:10:30 since when?

4 17:10:32 A 2001.

5 17:10:32 Q About how many songs per year are on your

6 17:10:35 greatest hits CD that you circulate to your friends?

7 17:10:37 A Between 18 and 22, or something like that.

8 17:10:39 Q Do you have permission from the copyright

9 17:10:42 holders of the songs you include on the CD to make and

10 17:10:43 distribute copies of their content?

11 17:10:44 MS. KOHLMANN: Object.

12 17:10:46 You can answer.

13 17:10:47 THE WITNESS: I'm -- I'm not sure, but I buy

14 17:10:49 all the CDs.

15 17:10:51 MR. KRAMER: Q. So after you buy the CDs --

16 17:10:53 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Counsel, your microphone.

17 17:10:53 MR. KRAMER: Q. -- after you buy all the

18 17:10:53 CDs, you feel you have the right to make copies and

19 17:10:56 distribute copies of the songs on those CDs to 50 of

20 17:10:56 your friends?

21 17:10:59 A I do.

22 17:10:59 Q You don't believe you're causing the

23 17:11:02 copyright holders of -- of those songs any harm when

24 17:11:05 you do that; right?

25 17:11:06 A I don't really --
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2 17:11:06 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

3 17:11:07 THE WITNESS: -- don't really know.

4 17:11:08 MR. KRAMER: Q. I'm asking what you think.

5 17:11:10 A Well, I own -- I bought the CD, so it's mine.

6 17:11:16 Q So you think that gives you the right to send

7 17:11:19 them?

8 17:11:19 A I do.

9 17:11:20 Q You don't think the copyright holder for each

10 17:11:26 song -- song should be entitled to recover $150,000 in

11 17:11:29 damages from you because you included their songs on

12 17:11:34 your CD; right?

13 17:11:34 A I wouldn't --

14 17:11:34 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

15 17:11:35 THE WITNESS: I wouldn't know.

16 17:11:35 MR. KRAMER: Q. You don't -- but you don't

17 17:11:36 think that's right?

18 17:11:36 A I wouldn't know.

19 17:11:37 Q You wouldn't do it if you thought you'd be

20 17:11:40 obligated to the copyright holders on the songs for

21 17:11:42 $150,000 in damages for each song; would you?

22 17:11:48 A I -- I don't -- I don't know.

23 17:11:48 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

24 17:11:49 You can answer.

25 17:11:49 MR. KRAMER: Q. What were some of the songs
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2 17:11:51 of the year for 2008?

3 17:11:51 A Um --

4 17:11:55 MS. KOHLMANN: Are you asking about his songs

5 17:11:57 of the year?

6 17:11:57 MR. KRAMER: Yes, Mr. Herzog's songs of the

7 17:12:00 year.

8 17:12:00 THE WITNESS: Let's see. There was Shaft.

9 17:12:03 There was American Boy. There was -- there was The

10 17:12:15 '59 Sound. Would you like some more?

11 17:12:19 MR. KRAMER: Q. That's a good start.

12 17:12:21 A They're good songs.

13 17:12:23 Q You have a blog on the Internet, don't you,

14 17:12:31 Mr. Herzog?

15 17:12:32 A Yes.

16 17:12:32 Q What's the URL for that blog?

17 17:12:34 A I think it's dherzogblog.blogspot.com.

18 17:12:41 Q You posted liner notes for your 2008 Songs of

19 17:12:41 the Year CD --

20 17:12:44 A I did.

21 17:12:44 Q -- to that blog very recently; isn't that

22 17:12:47 right?

23 17:12:48 A Yes.

24 17:12:48 Q When was that?

25 17:12:50 A Probably December, November.
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2 17:15:01 sequence of the film on YouTube; do you?

3 17:15:04 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

4 17:15:05 THE WITNESS: I don't know.

5 17:15:05 MR. KRAMER: Q. You don't think that's

6 17:15:06 right; do you?

7 17:15:07 A I don't know.

8 17:15:07 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

9 17:15:08 MR. KRAMER: Q. Does that appeal to your

10 17:15:09 sense of equity?

11 17:15:10 A It's -- No. It's on YouTube.

12 17:15:11 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

13 17:15:11 MR. KRAMER: Right.

14 17:15:12 Q Does that make it -- does that mean that

15 17:15:12 it --

16 17:15:14 A YouTube thinks it's okay to show.

17 17:15:16 Q So you think it's okay to show?

18 17:15:19 A You -- YouTube --

19 17:15:19 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

20 17:15:20 THE WITNESS: -- thinks it's okay to show.

21 17:15:21 MR. KRAMER: Q. If YouTube thinks it's okay

22 17:15:24 to show --

23 17:15:24 A You'd have to ask YouTube.

24 17:15:25 Q Well, that's a good question, sir.

25 17:15:26 You can't tell whether it's authorized or
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2 17:15:28 not; right?

3 17:15:29 A I -- I -- I -- I can't -- I --

4 17:15:29 Q Did you think --

5 17:15:32 A -- could I tell whether that's authorized?

6 17:15:33 No, I'm not sure whether I can or I can't, yeah. It's

7 17:15:36 not my -- it's not my -- I didn't put it up there, and

8 17:15:39 it's not -- it doesn't belong to anything that I've,

9 17:15:42 you know, quote, "been involved in the making of,"

10 17:15:44 like, you know, the MTV Viacom -- the MTV Networks

11 17:15:47 Viacom content so...

12 17:15:49 Q What would you need to know what -- in order

13 17:15:51 to determine whether it was authorized or not?

14 17:15:53 A I'm not sure.

15 17:15:53 Q Can you think of some things that would help?

16 17:15:59 A That would clarify copyright?

17 17:16:01 No. Only if it pertains to, you know,

18 17:16:09 something, again, that either I put up there

19 17:16:10 personally or that I knew my company was involved

20 17:16:12 with.

21 17:16:13 Q You couldn't tell otherwise?

22 17:16:14 A I'm not sure I could.

23 17:16:15 Q You don't think you could?

24 17:16:18 A I don't think I could.

25 17:16:19 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.
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2 17:16:19 MR. KRAMER: Q. One of the songs on the

3 17:16:22 Songs of the Year CD for 2008 was Down in the Hole by

4 17:16:28 Steve Earle; right?

5 17:16:29 A Yes.

6 17:16:30 Q Okay. What video on the YouTube service did

7 17:16:31 you link to from your blog in connection with that

8 17:16:33 song?

9 17:16:33 A I think a clip from the show.

10 17:16:34 Q Clip from the show The Wire?

11 17:16:36 A The Wire, right. Sorry, The Wire, yes.

12 17:16:39 Q On HBO; right?

13 17:16:40 A Yes.

14 17:16:40 Q Do you have any idea whether HBO authorized

15 17:16:42 that clip from its show The Wire to be on the YouTube

16 17:16:46 service?

17 17:16:46 A None.

18 17:16:46 Q Did you have permission from HBO to provide a

19 17:16:50 link to the clip from the show, The Wire, on YouTube?

20 17:16:54 A I didn't know.

21 17:16:54 Q Do you know who uploaded the clip?

22 17:16:56 A I don't.

23 17:16:57 Q Do you know if that person had authorization

24 17:16:58 to do so?

25 17:17:00 A I don't.
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2 17:19:35 speculation.

3 17:19:39 THE WITNESS: I should be getting this by

4 17:19:40 now.

5 17:20:01 MR. KRAMER: Let's go off the record for one

6 17:20:03 second.

7 17:20:03 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Going off the record now

8 17:20:04 at 5:22.

9 17:20:06 (Recess taken.)

10 17:21:13 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the record

11 17:21:14 at 5:23.

12 17:21:16 MR. KRAMER: What number are we up to?

13 17:21:20 THE REPORTER: 28.

14 17:21:28 MR. KRAMER: There you go.

15 17:21:29 (Document marked Herzog Exhibit 28

16 17:21:36 for identification.)

17 17:21:36 MR. KRAMER: Q. Mr. Herzog, what's been

18 17:21:38 marked as Exhibit 28 to your deposition is a printout

19 17:21:40 of the website at the URL

20 17:21:49 http://dherzogblog.blogspot.com. I printed this off

21 17:21:50 the Internet yesterday.

22 17:21:50 Could you take a look at that and let me know

23 17:21:50 whether it is a printout from the blog that you

24 17:21:50 created?

25 17:21:54 A It looks like it is, yes.
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2 17:21:55 Q This is the blog that we've been discussing;

3 17:21:57 right?

4 17:21:58 A Yes.

5 17:21:58 Q And you were responsible for creating the

6 17:22:00 contents of this blog; right?

7 17:22:02 A I am.

8 17:22:02 Q Are you aware of any video to which you

9 17:22:06 linked from on your blog that you know was not

10 17:22:09 authorized to be on YouTube by the copyright holder?

11 17:22:13 A Am I aware -- sorry.

12 17:22:14 Just repeat that.

13 17:22:15 Q Sure.

14 17:22:16 Are you aware of any video to which you

15 17:22:19 linked to from your blog that was not authorized to be

16 17:22:21 on YouTube by the copyright holder?

17 17:22:26 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.

18 17:22:26 THE WITNESS: I am not.

19 17:22:27 MR. KRAMER: Q. Can you take a quick look

20 17:23:00 through the Exhibit No. 28, Mr. Herzog --

21 17:23:03 A Yes.

22 17:23:04 Q -- and let me know whether on your blog you

23 17:23:06 linked to any clips of content that you believe are

24 17:23:09 owned by Viacom?

25 17:23:11 A Any clips of content that I believe are owned
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2 17:23:14 by Viacom. Maybe -- I think there's one.

3 17:23:24 Q Which is that?

4 17:23:26 A I think the American Boy clip might have come

5 17:23:33 off of an MTV Europe award show, if I remember

6 17:23:38 correctly.

7 17:23:38 Q Which number is that?

8 17:23:40 A I think that's No. 2.

9 17:23:56 Q Any others?

10 17:23:57 A That's the only one I can think of or that I

11 17:24:00 see that, you know, comes back to me in that regard.

12 17:24:03 Q Was the clip of the MTV award show that you

13 17:24:07 linked to from your blog authorized to be on YouTube?

14 17:24:10 A I have no idea. I don't believe so, if it's

15 17:24:13 one of ours. But I also believed that there was a

16 17:24:18 chance you go to that link and it's no longer there,

17 17:24:22 as often happens.

18 17:24:27 Q Did you ask that anybody remove the clip?

19 17:24:30 A I did not.

20 17:24:31 Q In fact, you actually sent people to see the

21 17:24:33 clip on YouTube?

22 17:24:35 A Yeah.

23 17:24:35 Q Was Viacom being damaged by virtue of the

24 17:24:39 fact that you were sending people to watch this clip

25 17:24:44 on YouTube?
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2 17:24:44 A Well, they weren't getting paid for it, so --

3 17:24:48 but you'd have to ask -- you know, I don't run MTV.

4 17:24:53 I'm not sure what they think over there.

5 17:24:53 Q Who does run MTV?

6 17:24:56 A Van Toffler.

7 17:24:57 Q So you have no view as to whether or not

8 17:24:59 Viacom was being harmed by virtue of the presence of

9 17:25:00 this clip on YouTube?

10 17:25:01 A I know Viacom generally. I -- I believe, our

11 17:25:03 current position is we don't generally want our stuff

12 17:25:06 up on YouTube.

13 17:25:07 Q But rather than asking that this clip be

14 17:25:09 taken down, you actually sent people to see it?

15 17:25:12 A Yeah, as long as it was there. I also

16 17:25:15 under -- understood that, you know, they could go

17 17:25:16 there. There's a chance that they would go to an

18 17:25:19 empty link at some times and, again, I believe there's

19 17:25:22 an ongoing process where stuff goes up and comes down.

20 17:25:26 Q Why would you send people to something that

21 17:25:42 you thought might become an empty link?

22 17:25:45 A Because I liked that particular clip.

23 17:25:47 Q So you were happy to see that that clip was

24 17:25:50 up on YouTube?

25 17:25:51 MS. KOHLMANN: Objection.
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1 09:43 from?

2 A. First --

3 MR. BASKIN: Wait, wait, wait. First let me

4 record an objection in as far as it asks you to comment

5 09:43 on a legal conclusion on a legal basis.

6 Go ahead and answer the question --

7 THE WITNESS: Now I'd like to have the question

8 again.

9 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

10 09:43 Q. Sure.

11 When Viacom material is placed on YouTube by

12 people or entities other than YouTube, so by some kid

13 down the street or by a marketing agency or whoever,

14 where does the obligation for YouTube to pay Viacom come

15 09:43 from?

16 MR. BASKIN: Same objection.

17 THE WITNESS: You have an obligation to protect

18 the intellectual property of everyone. That's standard

19 law. And to the extent that other people place material

20 09:44 on YouTube, it's your obligation to know it. And if

21 it's our material, it's your obligation either to

22 eliminate it or to pay us.

23 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

24 Q. Do you know who SpongeBob SquarePants is?

25 09:44 A. I do. I have never met him in person, but I
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1 09:44 have heard about him.

2 Q. What's his relationship with Viacom?

3 A. It's an animated product of Nickelodeon shown

4 all over of the world, including China.

5 09:44 Q. And Nickelodeon is part of Viacom; correct?

6 A. Yes, it is.

7 MR. SCHAPIRO: I'm going to show you a document

8 that, in the tradition of these depositions, I will

9 represent was printed from YouTube this morning, a

10 09:45 screenshot. I'd ask that it be marked -- I guess we're

11 at Exhibit 1.

12 (Whereupon, Exhibit 1 was marked

13 for identification.)

14 BY MR. SHAPIRO:

15 09:45 Q. I'd ask you to take a look at that, and as I

16 said, I'll represent these are YouTube search results.

17 This is a search conducted on YouTube using the term

18 "SpongeBob" this morning.

19 A. I'm not familiar with the document. I see a

20 09:46 long list with the name "SpongeBob." I have no idea --

21 Q. Yes. Correct. There is a long list with the

22 name "SpongeBob"; correct?

23 A. Yes.

24 Q. And next to the name "SpongeBob," do you see

25 09:46 any images?
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1 09:46 A. Yes, there are images of SpongeBob.

2 Q. In fact, you mentioned that SpongeBob is now

3 showing in China. Do you see that the third item

4 down --

5 09:46 A. It's shown all over the world, to my knowledge.

6 Q. But even in China. Even this exhibit says

7 "SpongeBob SquarePants in China"; correct?

8 A. Yes. I made that deal.

9 Q. Are these authorized clips, or are they

10 09:46 infringing clips?

11 A. How can I tell you that? You show me a piece

12 of paper with the name "SpongeBob." I know nothing

13 about the piece of paper or the implications of

14 "SpongeBob." I know that in China I made the deal, it

15 09:47 was broadcast to hundreds of millions of homes, and we

16 were paid for it.

17 Q. But it's not possible to tell just by this

18 whether these clips are authorized or not?

19 MR. BASKIN: Objection.

20 09:47 THE WITNESS: I don't know. I haven't examined

21 the paper. But to the best of my knowledge, I can't see

22 any.

23 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

24 Q. Do you think there are ways that someone else

25 09:47 by looking at this screenshot could tell?
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1 09:47 A. Maybe. Maybe somebody more familiar with the

2 worldwide distribution of SpongeBob than I am could

3 answer your question.

4 Q. So people in your organization?

5 09:47 A. I would hope so.

6 Q. Would they be the best situated to answer that?

7 A. I don't know.

8 MR. BASKIN: Objection.

9 THE WITNESS: I can't answer those questions

10 09:47 because they are so hypothetical, particularly when you

11 start me with a piece of paper that I saw for the first

12 time this morning and have no idea what it is.

13 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

14 Q. And if someone at YouTube saw this screen for

15 09:47 the first time in his life this morning, what should

16 that employee of YouTube do?

17 MR. BASKIN: Objection.

18 THE WITNESS: I have no idea because I don't

19 know what he's looking at. Is he looking at how this

20 09:47 product was distributed in Egypt? I guess he wouldn't

21 have any interest in that unless he put it on YouTube.

22 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

23 Q. Since you've never been on YouTube, I'll

24 represent -- I think your lawyer won't dispute this --

25 09:48 that when a party searches on YouTube -- if a kid goes
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1 09:48 to YouTube and types in "SpongeBob," he or she will get

2 a list of search results and thumbnail images that look

3 like this.

4 A. I see. I take your word for that.

5 09:48 Q. Knowing that, does it change your opinion about

6 whether this material should be on YouTube right now?

7 MR. BASKIN: Objection insofar as it calls for

8 him to render some legal conclusion or legal advice.

9 THE WITNESS: Look, it's the same answer. If

10 09:48 this is put on YouTube by a third party and YouTube does

11 nothing to take it off but uses it without our

12 permission, they are violating the law and our rights.

13 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

14 Q. How would you like YouTube to determine whether

15 09:49 it's been put up by a third party without your

16 permission?

17 A. That's their obligation. You know, there's a

18 telephone. All they have to do is call and see whether

19 we authorized it, and they would probably hear the

20 09:49 answer no.

21 Q. Can you think of any other ways?

22 MR. BASKIN: Objection again insofar as it

23 calls for --

24 THE WITNESS: I would think that --

25 09:49 MR. BASKIN: Please. Please.
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1 09:57 fair price for the product, then they would have sent

2 out a similar takedown.

3 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

4 Q. Can you think of any other instances or do you

5 09:57 know of any other instances in which YouTube has allowed

6 its material to -- pardon me -- Viacom has allowed its

7 material to stay up on YouTube?

8 A. No. It may have been if they got paid for

9 that, I would think so, but I know of no such instance.

10 09:58 There may have been. I just don't know.

11 Q. Would there be any business reasons to do so?

12 A. How would I know if there is a business reason

13 if I don't know that they did it and what the

14 circumstances were? Obviously if it happened -- and I

15 09:58 have no knowledge -- they would have had a business

16 reason.

17 Q. And if they did, you wouldn't expect YouTube to

18 take it down, would you?

19 A. No. No. That's not a question --

20 09:58 MR. BASKIN: Objection again insofar as --

21 THE WITNESS: That's not a question I can

22 answer. You should ask that of the executive that you

23 think allowed material to be used. Ask him why. I'm

24 sure you'll get an intelligent answer. But I don't know

25 09:58 of any of the instances, so I can't answer your
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1 09:58 question.

2 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

3 Q. Do you know if, subsequent to the filing of

4 this lawsuit, Viacom has used YouTube for what's

5 09:59 sometimes described as stealth marketing?

6 Do you know what stealth marking is?

7 MR. BASKIN: Objection as to form.

8 MR. SCHAPIRO: It's a compound question. It's

9 a bad question. I'll withdraw the question.

10 09:59 THE WITNESS: I would rather you define --

11 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

12 Q. As I'm using the term, it would be posting

13 material without being open about the fact that the

14 company itself was posting the material, trying to make

15 09:59 it look as if this were a viral or spontaneous spread of

16 material for marketing purposes.

17 A. I have no knowledge as to whether they did that

18 or not. I would assume they would use any legal

19 technique to determine who is stealing our product.

20 09:59 Q. You said a few minutes ago that SpongeBob is

21 easily recognizable. Everybody knows that Paramount

22 is --

23 A. Viacom.

24 Q. -- is part of Viacom.

25 10:00 Who or what is the Human Giant?
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1 10:00 A. The Human Giant? Are you talking about a fairy

2 tale? No, I don't know what you're referring to. I

3 know we have a lot of giants, like Comedy Central, that

4 belong to Viacom, but I don't know the expression.

5 10:00 Q. You're not aware of a Viacom character called

6 Human Giant or a show?

7 A. May have heard of it, but it never rang a

8 particular bell, obviously.

9 Q. But you believe YouTube should recognize it?

10 10:00 MR. BASKIN: Again, objection insofar as it

11 calls for a legal or technical --

12 THE WITNESS: In the first place -- go ahead.

13 Make your objection. I'll allow you to do that.

14 MR. BASKIN: Thank you.

15 10:00 Object insofar as it calls for a legal or

16 technological conclusion on the part of Mr. Redstone.

17 THE WITNESS: The fact that I don't know every

18 single detailed product of Viacom does not mean that you

19 should be using it without our consent. And if you have

20 10:01 material that you don't know who it belongs to, you can

21 find out.

22 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

23 Q. Tell me about that. How?

24 A. I just told you.

25 10:01 Q. Here's another hypothetical: Let's say I go on
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1 10:01 to YouTube today and I see what's looks to be a

2 Slovenian soap opera.

3 A. Uh-huh.

4 Q. How should I find out whether that's

5 10:01 authorized, not authorized, and who owns it?

6 MR. BASKIN: Again, I object as far as it calls

7 for a legal or technological opinion on the part of

8 Mr. Redstone.

9 THE WITNESS: I have no way of answering your

10 10:01 question. If there were a known Slovenian opera

11 destination, you call them and find out. I can't answer

12 those questions. Why would you expect me to? They are

13 too hypothetical and too far related from the guts of

14 this case.

15 10:01 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

16 Q. Do you know if you're suing YouTube for the

17 presence of Human Giant material on the site of YouTube?

18 A. Let me put it this way: If Human Giant is a

19 product of Viacom and you use it without our consent, we

20 10:02 should sue you for using it.

21 Q. Do you have any idea whether Human Giant is a

22 Viacom property?

23 A. I've already testified. Maybe I'm getting old

24 and my memory is not as good as it used to be, but I

25 10:02 don't profess to know every single product that Viacom
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1 10:02 has.

2 Q. How about "Rick & Steve"? Is that a Viacom

3 product?

4 A. I've heard of that.

5 10:02 Q. What is it?

6 A. I don't know. I don't watch all of these

7 programs. I watch Paramount, of course, as you do. I

8 watch MTV. I watch Nickelodeon. I watch VH1. I watch

9 BET. I watch Spike. But do I know every piece of

10 10:02 material that each one of these distribution channels

11 owns or presents? Of course not.

12 Q. If someone put "Rick & Steve" material on

13 YouTube and YouTube doesn't pay you -- strike that

14 question.

15 10:03 How is it that although you wouldn't recognize

16 "Rick & Steve" if they walked into this room, how is it

17 that you think YouTube should?

18 MR. BASKIN: Objection as to form --

19 THE WITNESS: Can you make that as a general

20 10:03 objection so that I won't be interrupting?

21 MR. BASKIN: It's not the rules.

22 Objection as to form and in so far as it

23 assumes a fact not in evidence.

24 THE WITNESS: I assume that you're acting

25 10:03 appropriately --
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1 10:03 MR. BASKIN: I hope so.

2 THE WITNESS: -- but you should know that you

3 interfere with my line of thought.

4 Can I have the question back again?

5 10:03 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

6 Q. Sure.

7 How is it that although you wouldn't recognize

8 "Rick & Steve" if they walked into this room, you think

9 YouTube should recognize that as a Viacom property and

10 10:04 take it down?

11 A. Would you recognize "Rick & Steve" if they

12 walked into this room? Fair question.

13 Q. Although I'm the one asking questions, I

14 certainly wouldn't. I wouldn't.

15 10:04 A. Now, here is my point: It's the obligation of

16 YouTube, not me, to determine who that belongs to. If

17 it belongs to Viacom, they can determine that easily.

18 If it belongs to Viacom, they have no right to use it

19 without our consent. It's your obligation to determine

20 10:04 who this product that's shoved on your -- shoved on

21 YouTube, who it belongs to. It's not my obligation.

22 Q. You've said again and again that if it belongs

23 to Viacom, they, meaning YouTube, can determine that

24 easily.

25 10:04 A. I think they can.
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1 10:04 Q. So far you've given us an example of calling

2 Viacom on the phone if they see something. What other

3 basis do you have for saying that?

4 A. Because your business --

5 10:05 MR. BASKIN: Wait. Wait. You've got to let me

6 record my objection.

7 Again, I object insofar as it's asking

8 Mr. Redstone to discuss either legal or technological

9 issues that are outside his bailiwick.

10 10:05 THE WITNESS: I didn't think it was a legal

11 problem. I thought it was a factual problem.

12 So go ahead again, please.

13 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

14 Q. I first asked, "You've said again and again

15 10:05 that if it belongs to Viacom, they, meaning YouTube, can

16 determine that easily."

17 You answered, "I think they can."

18 A. I know they can.

19 Q. Then I said, "So far you've given us an example

20 10:05 of calling Viacom on the phone if they see unidentified

21 material, and they should ask Viacom maybe, 'Is this

22 yours?'"

23 Are there other mechanisms that you think

24 YouTube could use --

25 10:05 A. I'd like to make a general observation.
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1 10:05 MR. BASKIN: Same objection.

2 THE WITNESS: Your people are in this business.

3 They are in the business of aggregating material to use

4 for their financial purposes. They are very, very smart

5 10:06 people, and I mean it. People at YouTube and at

6 Google -- I've met some of them -- are very smart, and

7 they would probably know what each piece of material --

8 who it belonged to. However, if they don't know it and

9 they really want to prevent unauthorized use -- which

10 10:06 obviously you didn't, because you used so much that you

11 did know -- they can find out one way or the other who

12 it belongs to. You have a search engine. You can

13 search it and find out in seconds.

14 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

15 10:06 Q. Are you familiar with the phrase

16 "user-generated content"?

17 A. I assume that's content that a user generates.

18 Like, he makes a film, and he puts it on some Internet

19 space.

20 10:06 Q. Do you know of any Internet sites that host

21 user-generated content?

22 A. Well, I think we did once in something called

23 iFilm. I think that we -- that people send in their

24 films, people who thought they could make a movie, and

25 10:07 it was on iFilm, which is now out of business, by the
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1 10:07 way.

2 Q. Do you have an understanding of how a site like

3 iFilm or YouTube or -- you also own a site called

4 AtomFilms; correct?

5 10:07 MR. BASKIN: Did you answer?

6 THE WITNESS: Yes.

7 MR. BASKIN: Okay.

8 Objection as to form, by the way.

9 BY MR. SCHAPIRO:

10 10:07 Q. -- can determine whether user-generated content

11 has been put up with authorization?

12 A. It's easy to find out. If you're running a

13 Paramount product, SpongeBob, you can find out if we

14 authorized it, and you know that we didn't.

15 10:08 Q. I apologize. My question wasn't clear.

16 A. Okay.

17 Q. I'm now talking about user-generated content,

18 which you said a moment ago was individual users making

19 maybe a short video and putting it out.

20 10:08 A. Right.

21 Q. Those people have rights too; correct?

22 MR. BASKIN: Objection insofar as it calls for

23 a legal --

24 THE WITNESS: Well, I don't know if they have

25 10:08 rights at all. I have no idea. But the fact is that


